
City of Bay Minette 
Planning Commission 

301 D’Olive Street ∙ Bay Minette, Alabama 36507 
Phone (251) 580-1650 ∙  COBM_Planning@cityofbayminetteal.gov 

 

 
cityofbayminetteal.gov 

 

AGENDA 
March 14, 2024 
Regular Meeting   

8:00 a.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

301 D’Olive Street, Bay Minette 
 

1.) Call to Order 
2.) Invocation and Pledge 
3.) Announcements & Registration to Address the Commission 

Before the meeting begins, Citizens wishing to speak must be signed in, notate they wish to speak  
and follow the Procedures for Addressing the Planning Commission. 

4.) Approval of Minutes for the February 8, 2024, Regular Meeting  
5.) Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflicts of Interest 
6.) Old Business 
7.) New Business 

a.) SD-24003, Abundant Life Christian Center Inc     **Public Hearing** TABLED 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Minor Subdivision to combine five (5) lots 
Location: 541 Daphne Rd, PIN’s: 222237, 72605, 12565, 222248, 273813 

b.) SP-24001, Abundant Life Christian Center Inc TABLED 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Construction of a Fellowship Hall 
Location: 541 Daphne Rd, PIN’s: 222237, 72605, 12565, 222248, 273813 

c.) SP-24002, Plasmine Technology, Inc 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Site Plan Approval for Trailer Storage and Off-Street Parking Facilities 
Location: 251 Newport Pkwy, PIN’s: 35534, 62861 
 

d.) SD-24004, TPQ, LLC- Quinley Oaks Subdivision     **Public Hearing** 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Preliminary Approval for a 11-lot Major Subdivision 
Location: Northwest Corner of Quinley St and W Railroad St, PIN’s: 18263, 359846 
 

e.) SD-24004, TPQ, LLC- Quinley Oaks Subdivision    **Public Hearing** 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Final Plat Approval for a 11-lot Major Subdivision 
Location: Northwest Corner of Quinley St and W Railroad St, PIN’s: 18263, 359846 

   
f.) Updates & Upcoming Cases 

  

8.) Reports & Comments 
a.) Mayor/Council/Administration 



 
cityofbayminetteal.gov 

 

b.) Attorney 
c.) Commissioners 
d.) Planning Staff 
e.) Citizen Comments 

9.) Adjournment  
**Next Regular Meeting – April 11, 2024** 



 
 

 
 
 

 

Bay Minette Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Minutes February 8, 2024 Monthly Meeting No. 2 

The City of Bay Minette Planning Commission met in Regular Session on Thursday, February 8, 2024. The meeting was called to 
order at 8:02 a.m. by, Chairman Todd Stewart, in the Council Chambers located in Bay Minette City Hall, at 301 D’Olive Street, Bay 
Minette, Alabama; this being the proper place, date and hour as advertised to hold such meeting.  
 

IN ATTENDANCE At 8:02 a.m. the following members were present, and a quorum established: 
Todd Stewart, Chairman  
Neal Covington, Vice Chairman  
Robert A. “Bob” Wills, Mayor  
Rob Madison, Building Official/Commission Member 
Ray Clark, Commission Member 
Hiram Templeton, Commission Member 
Earl Emmons, Commission Member  
William Taylor, City Council/Commission Member 

Commission Members absent:  NONE 

Commission Members late: NONE 

Other persons in regular attendance:   
Clair Dorough, City Planner  
Paula Bonner, Planner Associate  
Jessia Peed, Planning Coordinator 
Scotty Lewis, Attorney 
Melissa Hadley, City Engineering Consultant with GMC 
Kristina Pittman, North Baldwin Chamber of Commerce 

 
GUESTS Cathy Barnette, (Representative for Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
 David Conner, (Representative for Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
       Gary Capuano, (Representative for Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
  Mukesh Patel, (Representative for CU-24001, Bay Minette Liquor, Wine & Cigar) 
  Abuisek Rajpuh, (Representative for CU-24001, Bay Minette Liquor, Wine & Cigar) 
  Fred McLaughlin, (Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
  David Ellis, (Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons)   
  William Ellis, (Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
  Scott Ellis, (Z-24001 & SD-24001, Old Towne Commons) 
          Eric Godwin (Case Affiliation not indicated) 

       Candace Harper (Case Affiliation not indicated) 
 
INVOCATION Councilman Taylor presented the invocation, followed by the pledge.  
 
ITEM 3. Announcements/Registration to address the Commission. 
   
ITEM 4. Approval of the Minutes of the January 11, 2024, Regular Meeting.  



 
 

 
 
 

 

Vice Chairman Covington made a motion to approve the January minutes as written. The motion was seconded by 
Commission Member Hiram Templeton and carried unanimously.  

 
ITEM 5. Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflicts of Interest:  None 
        
ITEM 6. Old Business – Chairman Stewart thanked everyone for their participation in preparation for review of the Old Towne 

Commons development. 
 
ITEM 7. New Business 
 

a.) CU-24001, Bay Minette Liquor, Wine & Cigar 
Chairman Stewart introduced the case, and with no disclosures from the Commission, he stated the applicants are 
in attendance. Mrs. Bonner reviews the request and Staff Report including the zoning, property location that is within 
an existing shopping center, parking lot update including its repaving and restriped status, proposed interior remodel 
layout, existing access for the proposed case including that it will have nominal impacts on infrastructure or traffic, 
no comments from various agencies, use allowance per the Zoning Ordinance, various permitting requirements if 
the use is approved by the Commission, and staff recommendation for approval.  
 
Chairman Stewart and Commission Member Emmons inquired on regulations regarding the daycare proximity to the 
proposed Liquor, Wine & Cigar store. Mrs. Bonner states that is an ABC Board regulation, not City-regulated. The 
applicant stated the ABC board is fine with proximity since purchases will not be consumed on the property.   
 
With no further comments or questions from the Commission, Vice-Chairman Covington made a motion for approval, 
with Mayor Wills seconding. Commission Member Emmons opposed. Case concludes with the majority voting in 
favor of the use to be approved. 

 
 

b.) Z-24001, Old Towne Commons & c.) SD-24001, Old Towne Commons **Cases Reviewed Concurrently 
 
Chairman Stewart introduced the case. Mrs. Dorough states there are two concurrent requests for this property so 
they will be reviewed together but there will be two separate motions and public hearings.  
 
Mrs. Dorough reviews the requests and states the applicant is requesting a Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning 
request. She includes the history of the property stating that it was annexed into City Limits in 2023 and pre-zoned 
to R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential, R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential and B-2, General 
Business District. She reviews the lot summary with the proposed phasing plan with the current site calculations, 
setbacks and lot dimensions as they deviated from the previous worksession discussion.  Mrs. Barnette states 
reasoning for changes was due to discussions with homebuilders and their requests regarding the zero-lot line side 
setbacks and includes the fire code requirements or enhanced fire protection that would drive the cost up 
significantly. Mrs. Dorough also includes that Staff would not recommend the zero lot lines and a discussion ensues 
regarding the regulations, requirements, liability requirements and the cost increases associated. Mrs. Dorough 
continues the review including Exhibit A changes such as roadways and traffic, NBU location for water tower, sidewalk 
width increase from 4’ to 5’, commercial building clarification regarding prohibition on metal building façades the 
connectivity between residential and commercial buildings, and the proposed deviation from buffering along the 
southern property line. A discussion ensues from a public audience member and Commission Member Clark 
regarding current buffer requirements and the reasoning behind City concession to which Mrs. Dorough explains 
zoning and buffer process.  Mrs. Dorough finalizes the staff report review.   
 
Chairman Stewart and Mrs. Barnette discuss the various PUD Narrative and overall developmental plan. Commission 
Member Clark inquired on parking availability near the proposed pool amenity, to which Mrs. Dorough and Vice-
Chairman Covington explain that type of detailed review typically occurs at a later date. Chairman Stewart inquires 
on the location for NBU acreage that is proposed to be dedicated for utilities. Chairman Stewart reviews the changes 
for zero lot line vs the applicant proposal for 5’ side setbacks.  Discussion between the Commission, Fire Inspector, 



 
 

 
 
 

 

Planning Staff, applicant and representatives ensues regarding the distinctions between the zero and five-foot side 
setbacks for the 40’ lots including allowing space, fire and building code requirements, costs associated, utility space 
availability, and allowable lot usage. 
 
With no further discussion, Chairman Stewart calls an informal question between the Commission members for the 
following items: 
 
1) Proposed 5’ lot line:  

In Favor: Mayor Wills, Chairman Stewart, Vice-Chairman Covington, Councilman Taylor, Commission Member 
Madison 
Opposed: Commission Member’s Templeton, Emmons and Clark  

 
2) Deviation from 50’ lots, minimum lot area. Discussion ensues and results in an alteration of the Narrative to 

allow the Developer to reserve the right to deviate from the 6,000 square-foot minimum lot area in irregularly 
shaped 50’ lots to a minimum lot area of 5,500 square feet on no more that 20% of the 50’ lots. 

 
Mrs. Barnette then clarifies that the correct approval exhibit is the overall site plan version with the lot summary and 
dated September 30, 2023. Mrs. Dorough includes that all phases will come back for Planning Commission review. 

 
Chairman Stewart opens the Public Hearing at 9:13am for Z-24001, Old Towne Commons 
 
Public participation: 
 

1) David Ellis owns land adjacent to the property. He states his concerns and comments: 
- Crossover/red light/accesses for nearby properties 
- Multi-family buffer- States he would like to increase it for the betterment of the community 
- Concern regarding the proposed 40’ lots  
- Construction standards- Requests higher construction standards to ensure a more probability of 

maintaining a great community. 
2) William Ellis states his comments and concerns: 

- Discusses his concern of authority moving from regulation standards to a PUD. He states he 
welcomes reasonable construction and is not in opposition to PUD.   

- Inquires on reasoning and the benefits to construct 40’ lots 
- Construction standards: Discusses various materials used in construction and potential issues 
- Opportunity is at PUD level and discusses fortified standards and upfront costs 

3) Scott Ellis states his comments and concerns: 
- Buffering concern on the North side and discusses potential trespassing issues 
- Drainage and stormwater runoff and management 
- Access and infrastructure of traffic flow 

 
  Cathy Barnette addresses issues and concerns discussed by the public:  

- Benefit for City of Bay Minette is growth for the community and provides an abundance of housing 
options.  

- Discusses allowable density for 40’ lots 
- They plan to use Architectural standards which encourage stoops and columns, etc. 
- Setbacks 
- States they are open to discuss the buffer request and have a meeting currently established with 

the Ellis’s to discuss 
- Gold fortified certification- States they are not ready to commit to this stipulation yet as different 

builders apply different standards 
- States they are happy to work with ALDOT but they cannot dictate or determine what the DOT will 

do.  



 
 

 
 
 

 

- They have a conceptual plan for drainage and states their full engineering design will meet all 
standards. 

 
  David Conner discusses the points provided by the public and reiterates Cathy’s statements. 
 

William Ellis states they are in favor of the PUD and inquires on what Bay Minette is getting in return for considering the 
deviations from normal regulations.  

 
 With no further comments or concerns from the public, Chairman closes public hearing at 9:46 am.  
 

Commission Member Clark speaks regarding the wetlands and the different uses of the property including housing, parks 
and amenities, lot sizes, and configuration of the overall site plan.  
 
Motion Z-24001: Recommendation to City Council for the adoption of the document.  Mrs. Dorough interjects that the 
consideration of the motion will include the version from September 30, 2023, and the revision of the Exhibit A includes the 
language with an alteration in the Narrative to allow the Developer to reserve the right to deviate from the 6,000 square-foot 
minimum lot area in irregularly shaped 50’ lots to a minimum lot area of 5,500 square feet on no more that 20% of the 50’ 
lots, an amount not to exceed 52 of the 260 proposed total. Vice-Chairman Covington makes a motion to recommend 
approval with the exceptions stated by Ms. Dorough. Councilman Taylor seconds. Commission Members Templeton and 
Clark opposed. With six (6) affirmative votes and two (2) opposing votes, the motion passes. 
 
Commission Members William Taylor and Earl Emmons leave the meeting at 9:57 am. 

 
c.) SD-24001, Old Towne Commons 
 
Mrs. Dorough discusses the differences between the previous two cases as they are pertain to the same property. She 
states SD-24001 is the Master Plan with phased development. She states as phases come through, the Commission 
will see public hearings for each individual phase and any significant deviations from the master plan, such as access 
changes, etc., would require the applicant to come back and request an amendment.   

 
With no further comments, Commission Member Templeton makes a motion to adopt the Master Plan with Vice-
Chairman Covington seconding. Commission Member Clark opposed. With the majority voting in favor of adopting the 
Master Plan, the motion passes. 

 
d.) Updates & Upcoming Cases 
Mrs. Dorough presented Updates and Upcoming cases as listed below: 

- Plasmine Technology tank farm and rail spur project 
- Newport Parkway Development Subdivision with a possible 180± units 

 
ITEM  8.  Reports 

a.) Mayor/Council Report – NONE 
b.) Attorney – None 
c.) Commissioner – None 
d.) Planning Staff – None 
e.) Public Comment – Mrs. Pittman states the Chamber will host their annual meeting on February 26th.  

 
ITEM 9. With no further business, Chairman Stewart adjourned the meeting at 10:04 am. 
 
 

  
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 

DONE THIS THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024 
 
 
      _________________________________________________________ 

Chairman, Todd Stewart 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jessica Peed, Planning Coordinator 
 
 
Motion Summary:  

a.) Approval of the January 11, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes: Vice Chairman Covington made a motion to approve the 
January minutes as written. The motion was seconded by Commission Member Hiram Templeton and carried 
unanimously.  

 
b.) CU-24001, Bay Minette Liquor, Wine & Cigar: Vice-Chairman Covington made a motion for approval, with Mayor 

Wills seconding. Commission Member Emmons opposed. Case concludes with the majority voting in favor of the use 
to be approved. 

 
c.) Z-24001, Old Towne Commons: Recommendation to City Council for the adoption of the document.  Mrs. Dorough 

interjects that the consideration of the motion will include the version from September 30, 2023, and the revision of 
the Exhibit A includes the language with an alteration in the Narrative to allow the Developer to reserve the right to 
deviate from the 6,000 square-foot minimum lot area in irregularly shaped 50’ lots to a minimum lot area of 5,500 
square feet on no more that 20% of the 50’ lots, an amount not to exceed 52 of the 260 proposed total. Vice-Chairman 
Covington makes a motion to recommend approval with the exceptions stated by Ms. Dorough. Councilman Taylor 
seconds. Commission Members Templeton and Clark opposed. With six (6) affirmative votes and two (2) opposing 
votes, the motion passes. 

 
d.) SD-24001, Old Towne Commons: Commission Member Templeton makes a motion to adopt the Master Plan with 

Vice-Chairman Covington seconding. Commission Member Clark opposed. With five (5) affirmative votes and one 
(1) opposing vote, the motion passes. 
 
 

 



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF ANALYSIS 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: March 14, 2024                                                             Case Number: SD-24003 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Abundant Life Christian Center Minor Subdivision  
Property Location: 541 Daphne Road 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-015.002 // 222237 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-015.000 // 72605 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.000 // 12565 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.001 // 222248   
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.002 // 273813 
 

Property Size: 5.23± acres 
Proposed Action: Approval to Combine Five (5) lots into One (1) lot 
Zoning: R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District 
Applicant: Tymon Wallace, Gant Group & Associates 
Property Owner:  Abundant Life Christian Center, Inc.

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

The subject property consists of approximately 5.29± acres and is located at 541 Daphne Road just northeast of West Mango Street.  To 
the north Daphne Road turns into Clay Street.   The subject site is surrounded by R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District 
zoning and uses but to the south is the back of the Standard Furniture building which is zoned M-1, Light Industrial District.  The subject 
property contains wetlands, therefore a wetland delineation report prepared by Goodwyn Mills Cawood, LLC has been submitted and a 
twenty-five-foot (25’) wetland setback boundary has been established.  The Minor Subdivision request is to combine the existing five (5) 
parcels into one (1) parcel in order to meet the required setbacks for the construction of a new fellowship hall to be located east (in the 
rear) of the existing sanctuary.  The existing fellowship hall to the north of the sanctuary has foundation damage and will be demolished 
prior to the new construction.  The applicant/owner has submitted a concurrent site plan application (SP-24001) for the construction of 
the proposed new fellowship hall.    

REVIEW STAGE 
  

SECTION 3.16 FINAL PLAT 
The purpose of the Final Plat is to provide an accurate record of street and property lines and other elements being established on the 
land and the conditions of their use. The Final Plat must conform substantially to the approved Preliminary Plat. All inspections and 
testing must be completed and approved by the Subdivision Official prior to the Final Plat being placed on the agenda for Commission 
action. A Final Plat may include only that portion of the approved Preliminary Plat, which the Subdivider proposes to record and develop 
at that time. If it is submitted in portions, each portion must individually conform to all requirements of these Regulations. 

No lot may be sold, or utilities extended to, or connected with, any subdivision of land, as defined herein until the Final Plat has been 
approved by the Planning Commission. 

3.16.01 Final approval will be considered only for subdivisions or portions of subdivisions that meet the requirements of 3.14 
Construction of Improvements. Or, in the case of Minor Subdivisions which do not involve any new street or drainage improvements, the 
extension of public facilities, nor the creation of any public improvements, after the required Pre-Application Conference. If qualified, those 
subdividers shall submit a complete application for Final Plat to the Planning and Development Services Department prior to a regularly 
scheduled Planning Commission meeting and in accordance with the established Meeting and Application Deadline Schedule. 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
SD-24003 R-3 Abundant Life Christian Center, Inc. Church 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
North R-3  Single Family Residential  
South R-3 Vacant / Single Family Residential 
East R-3 Single Family Residential  
West R-3 Single Family Residential 



3.16.04.01 The subdivider shall be responsible for the full installation of all required minimum improvements in the proposed subdivision 
prior to the submission of a final plat application to the Planning Commission. In lieu of full installation of minimum improvements, after 
no less than ninety percent (90%) of the minimum improvements have been installed, a developer may issue a financial guarantee with 
surety to the City ensuring that the remaining minimum improvements shall be completed. 

3.16.04.02 One (1) or more of the following may be accepted as a financial guarantee with surety payable to the City of Bay Minette: 
1. a letter of credit approved by the City Administrator and City Attorney, or 
2. a cash deposit to be held by the City, or 
3. a certified check from an Alabama lending institution in an amount not to exceed one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the cost 
of the required improvements remaining. 

3.16.04.03 A cost estimate for any remaining civil improvements shall be certified and submitted by the design engineer with the 
application for final plat approval; a cost estimate of any remaining landscaping improvements must be certified and submitted by the 
professional landscape architect with the application for final plat approval and the financial guarantee. 

3.16.06 Planning Commission Action. Presentation to the Planning Commission of Final Plat at a regularly scheduled meeting constitutes 
formal submission of said plat. At such meeting, the Planning Commission will review the plat and, after a public hearing, have the option 
to take the following actions: 

3.16.06.01 Approve the Final Plat as presented. 

3.16.06.02 Disapprove the Final Plat. If the Planning Commission determines that the Final Plat is in conflict with the approved 
Preliminary Plat or with the Subdivision Regulations, said plat may be disapproved. The reasons for such action shall be stated in the 
hearing, presented to the subdivider in writing and documented in the records of the Planning Commission. Reference shall be made to 
the specific section(s) of the regulations with which the Final Plat does not comply. The developer may resubmit the Final Plat application 
for Planning Commission review after the noted deficiencies have been corrected. 

3.16.06.03 Delay Action on the Final Plat.  The Planning Commission shall act to approve or disapprove a subdivision plat within thirty 
(30) calendar days after its formal submission at a regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the applicant waives this 
requirement and consents to an extension, the Planning Commission may defer action on the plat for a period not to exceed an additional 
thirty (30) calendar days. If no action is taken within the initial 30-day time period, or if there is no action taken within the extension 
period, such plat shall be deemed to have been approved, and notification to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission on 
request. 

3.16.07 Expression of Approval 
3.16.07.01 Approval and recordation of the final plat does not constitute the acceptance of any street or other public space shown on the 
plat. After approval of the Final Plat and the construction of streets, the Commission may recommend to the City Council that it accept the 
streets and take over their perpetual maintenance. Specific City Council resolution accepting streets and/or or other public spaces is 
required as noted herein. 

MAPPING 
  Existing Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

 



Locator  Site Map 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Although an application has been submitted as of this date, a proposed final plat has not been submitted resulting in an incomplete 
application.  Staff cannot review the application for compliance with the City of Bay Minette Subdivision Regulations without a proposed 
final plat.  The concurrent site plan application, SP-24001 is also missing vital documentation and is incomplete as well.  This site plan 
cannot be reviewed/approved until the subdivision request to combine the parcels is complete.  Staff recommends case SD-24003 be 
tabled until a complete and accurate application is submitted. 

STANDARDS OF APPROVAL / PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 

SECTION 3.05 STANDARDS OF APPROVAL 
The Planning Commission shall not approve the subdivision of land if the Commission makes a finding that such land is not suitable for platting 
and development as proposed, due to any of the following: 

3.05.01 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with these Regulations; 

3.05.02 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance and/or any other plan or program for 
the physical development of the City including but not limited to a Master Street Plan, a Transportation Plan, a Parks Plan, a Bicycle Plan, a 
Pedestrian Plan, or a Capital Improvements Program, where applicable; 

3.05.03 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with other applicable Federal, State or County laws and regulations; or 

3.05.04 Notwithstanding that the proposed subdivision may satisfy the technical, objective provisions of these Regulations, the Commission has 
discretion to deny a subdivision if there is any articulable, rational basis for a determination that the proposed subdivision otherwise endangers 
the health, safety, or welfare of persons or property. 

The applicant has requested concurrent review of the Preliminary and Final Plat applications, however the Final Plat review and approval is 
contingent upon the approval of the Preliminary Plat. If the Preliminary Plat application is not approved, the Final Plat application cannot 
be approved. For Final Plat applications, the Planning Commission makes the final decision based on the Standards of Approval and has 
the option to: 

 

• Approve the Final Plat as presented 
• Deny the Final Plat, reasons for denial and referencing the specific section(s) with which the plat does not comply  
• Delay action on the Final Plat due to a lack of information 

 
3.16.06.03 Delay Action on the Final Plat. 
The Planning Commission shall act to approve or disapprove a subdivision plat within thirty (30) calendar days after its formal submission at a regularly 
scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the applicant waives this requirement and consents to an extension, the Planning Commission may defer 
action on the plat for a period not to exceed an additional thirty (30) calendar days. If no action is taken within the initial 30-day time period, or if there 
is no action taken within the extension period, such plat shall be deemed to have been approved, and notification to that effect shall be issued by the 
Planning Commission on request. 







From: Jessica Peed
Bcc: AL Tolbert; ALDOT; ALDOT1; Brandon Bias; E-911 Addressing; Jason Padgett; Jeff Donald; Lee Walters; Melissa

Hadley; Mike Minchew; Murray Stewart; Steven W. Stewart
Subject: COMMENTS REQUESTED - SP-24001, SD-24003 Abundant Life Fellowship Hall Project
Date: Friday, February 16, 2024 8:53:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Abundant Life- Fellowship Hall Project.pdf

Good morning,
 
Attached you will find the application materials for Abundant Life Church, Fellowship Hall project, located
at 541 Old Daphne Rd. The applicants are requesting to do a concurrent review for Site Plan and a
Minor Subdivision to combine the lots in order to rebuild a fellowship hall and parking area located at the
rear of the church. Included is the application, site location with existing parcels proposed to combine,
project site layout, and site grading plan.  If there are other materials you would like to review, please let
me know and I will send in a separate email.
 
Please advise if you have any questions, comments or concerns regarding this project.
 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

 
 

mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:AL.Tolbert@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:"smithmi@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:"aaronb@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:brandon.bias@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:addressing@baldwin911.org
mailto:jpadgett@nbumail.com
mailto:JDonald@NBUMAIL.COM
mailto:lee.walters@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Murray.Stewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/








BY
RN


E S
T


DA
PH


NE
 R


D


ELM ST


E MANGO STW MANGO ST
KCS, Baldwin County, Pictometry


¯


0 80 16040
Feet


Site Map
SP-24001 & SD-24003  Abundant Life Church


Concurrent Site Plan Approval & Subdivision Approval
Site Location
Road Centerlines
BC Revenue Parcels


City of Bay Minette
Map Date 02/14/2024


PIN 273813


PIN 12565


PIN 222248


PIN 72605


PIN 222237







MO
RA


N 
ST


DA
PH


NE
 R


D


BYRNE ST


ELM ST


E HICKORY ST


W MANGO ST E MANGO ST


E BANYAN ST
W BANYAN ST


CLAY ST


W MAGNOLIA ST


LA
MA


R 
DR


S D
AY


 AV
E


W CEDAR ST


W HICKORY ST


EL
M 


ST


KCS, Baldwin County, Pictometry


¯


0 210 420105
Feet


Locator Map
SP-240001 & SD-24003, Abundant Life Church


Concurent Review for Site Plan Approval & Subdiviison Approval
Site Location
Road Centerlines
BC Revenue Parcels


City of Bay Minette
Map Date 02/14/2024


222248
273813


12565 72605


222237













		SP-24001 Application

		SP-24001 & SD-24003 PH Site Map

		SP-24001- SD-24003  Locator Map PH

		C-103 - Site Layout Plan - ABUNDANT LIFE FELLOWSHIP HALL

		C-104 - Site Grading Plan - ABUNDANT LIFE





 
 

 
 

 
SD-24003 

Large Format Plans Submitted 
Under Separate Cover 

 
 

See Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF ANALYSIS 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: March 14, 2024                                                             Case Number: SP-24001 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Abundant Life Christian Center Site Plan  
Property Location: 541 Daphne Road 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-015.002 // 222237 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-015.000 // 72605 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.000 // 12565 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.001 // 222248   
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-1-003-016.002 // 273813 
 

Property Size: 5.23± acres 
Proposed Action: Site Plan Approval request to construct a new 
Fellowship Hall  
Applicant/Engineer: Clyde Ashley, Jr. & Tymon Wallace / Gant Group 
& Associates, LLC 
Property Owner:  Abundant Life Christian Center Inc. 
P.O. Box 1523, Bay Minette, AL 36507 

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

The subject property consists of approximately 5.29± acres and is located at 541 Daphne Road just northeast of West Mango Street.  To 
the north Daphne Road turns into Clay Street.   The subject site is surrounded by R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District 
zoning and uses but to the south is the back of the Standard Furniture building which is zoned M-1, Light Industrial District.  The subject 
property contains wetlands, therefore a wetland delineation report prepared by Goodwyn Mills Cawood, LLC has been submitted and a 
twenty-five-foot (25’) wetland setback boundary included in the site plan.  The site plan request is for the construction of a new fellowship 
hall and parking area to be located east (in the rear) of the existing sanctuary.  The existing fellowship hall to the north of the sanctuary 
has foundation damage and will be demolished prior to the new construction. The site currently consists of five (5) separate parcels which 
must be combined into one (1) parcel prior to development.   The applicant/owner has submitted a concurrent subdivision application 
(SD-24003) to combine the parcels.  

 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Although an application has been submitted as of this date, vital site data and calculations have not been submitted resulting in an 
incomplete application.  Staff and the City’s engineer do not have the required information for review of drainage, landscaping, parking and 
lot coverage for compliance with the City of Bay Minette Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Regulations.  The concurrent subdivision 
application, SD-24003 is also missing vital documentation and is incomplete as well.  This site plan cannot be reviewed/approved until the 
subdivision request to combine the parcels is complete.  Staff recommends case SP-24001 be tabled until a complete and accurate 
application is submitted. 

 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
SD-24003 R-3 Abundant Life Christian Center, Inc. Church 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
North R-3  Single Family Residential  
South R-3 Vacant / Single Family Residential 
East R-3 Single Family Residential  
West R-3 Single Family Residential 



MAPPING 
  Existing Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

 

Locator   Site Map 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

For Site Plan Approval, no public hearing is required. The Planning Commission makes the final decision and has the option to: 
• Approve the Site Plan as presented 
• Approve the Site Plan with conditions, stating the conditions required 
• Deny the Site Plan, with stated factors for the denial 
• Table the Site Plan Request, due to lack of information 

Upon approval of the site plan, either as submitted or with changes and/or special conditions required by the Planning Commission, the 
Building Official may issue a building permit for a portion or all of the proposed development; provided that the application is in 
compliance with all applicable City, County, State and Federal requirements. 

8.09.10.04 Site Plan requests that are tabled, will not receive further review by the Planning Commission until all additional information requested has 
been received and reviewed for compliance by the Planning Department. 

8.09.10.05 Site Plan requests that are denied will not receive further review by the Planning Commission until all noted deficiencies have been 
addressed and revised documentation received and reviewed for compliance by the Planning Department. 

8.09.10.06 Any resubmittals, revisions, additional information or permit applications related to the application must be received within 180 days from 
the date of Planning Commission action, or a new Site Plan Application will be required. One (1) request for Site Plan Approval Extension of up to 180 
days will be reviewed administratively. 





  

February 26, 2024 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Clair Dorough 
City of Bay Minette, City Planner 
301 D’Olive St 
Bay Minette, AL 36507 
 
 
RE: ABUNDANT LIFE CHURCH 
 SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 
Dear Ms. Dorough: 
 
We have reviewed the civil construction documents dated February 14, 2024 for the Abundant 
Life Church property located on Daphne Road for conformance with the Bay Minette 
subdivision regulations and zoning ordinance. The plans have major deficiencies and cannot 
be approved as submitted. We offer the following comments that need to be addressed prior 
to approval by the City: 
 

1. A signed and sealed survey is required but was not included with the submission.  
2. The plans do not show that the existing parking area on the north side of the church is 

to be re-paved. This parking area is in extremely poor condition and needs to be 
included with the new construction as it can no longer be considered an all-weather 
paving condition. In addition, two of the existing parking spaces are inside the right-
of-way of Daphne Road and thus are encroaching off the property and into public 
property. This should be addressed with the repaving in this area. 

3. The existing sign is also located partially inside the right-of-way and may need a 
waiver. 

4. Per Section 4.20.02 of the City of Bay Minette Subdivision Regulations, post-
development release rates may not exceed pre-development rates for 2-, 5-, 10-, 25-, 
50-, and 100-year storms. Please provide analysis for the aforementioned storm events 
and ensure that post-development rates do not exceed pre-development rates. 

5. The provided rainfall intensity values are very low and no information is provided to 
support these numbers. According to NOAA Atlas 14 for this project area, the 5-
minute duration rainfall intensity for a 100-year storm is 15.6 in/hr. This value is much 
higher than the number used by the design engineer. If no citation can be provided to 
justify the numbers used in the calculations, they must be revised. 

6. It is unclear what value was used for the time of concentration. Please provide relevant 
calculations if other than 5-minutes.  

7. The rational method is sufficient to use as a means for calculating peak runoff values, 
but it cannot be used for retention volume calculations. The modified rational or SCS 
method are both acceptable options for volume calculations. 

8. The provided drainage maps should include clear boundaries between each drainage 
area and drainage subareas for each inlet. Currently, it is difficult to determine which 
impervious areas are encapsulated by each drainage area.  

9. Concentrated flow must be distributed via a level spreader at outlet A2 and D4. 
10. It appears that the parking lot is designed to also function as a stormwater detention 

area and as overflow from the subsurface drainage pipes. This is not advisable in this 
setting and could potentially result in congregants walking through standing water to 
access their vehicles. 

11. It appears that in some areas, run off will be directed from the proposed parking and 
drive areas back toward the existing sanctuary. This is not acceptable. 



 

12. Included with this letter as an integral part of the review are detailed mark-ups shown 
directly on the plans to be transmitted to the design engineer for correction. Overall, 
the plans are disorganized and should be resubmitted following a careful review by 
the design engineer of the Bay Minette Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Regulation 
to achieve compliance.  

 
Please let me know if further explanation or additional information are needed. Thank you. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GOODWYN MILLS CAWOOD, LLC 
 
 
 
Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, AICP 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosures 



From: Clair Dorough
To: Bamaengineer@comcast.net; Paula Bonner; Melissa Hadley; Tymon Wallace; Carlos Gant;

pastorhooks@cloud.com; abundantlife3@att.net
Cc: Jessica Peed
Subject: RE: Abundant Life Subdivision & Site Plan
Date: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 4:17:17 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Mr. Ashley,
The pre-application meeting on January 9th detailed what was expected and the Zoning Ordinances and Sub
Regs have been provided on numerous occasions for your review. Melissa’s comments and markups were
done in her capacity with GMC as the City’s Engineering Firm and represent the revisions needed to be
compliant with the City’s ordinances. Unfortunately, as we are now two weeks from Planning Commission
without a subdivision plat or acceptable site plan, it appears that we will likely have to recommend tabling
the applications. Without the subdivision plat we cannot move forward with the approval and we cannot
progress with the Site Plan either until a Subdivision Plat is approved. Due to the extensive comments on
the Site Plan, staff will not have adequate time to review and prepare a staff report for Planning
Commission.
 
We will proceed with a basic overview of the Subdivision and Site Plan applications to the Planning
Commission at the March 14th meeting since we have already advertised for the public hearing, but will be
recommending that the Commission table the applications until the submittals are complete. Hopefully the
Site Plan comments can be incorporated into the plan and a Subdivision Plat submitted in time for
presentation at the April 11th Planning Commission meeting.
 
Thank you,
Clair Dorough
City Planner
 
City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site
 
From: Bamaengineer@comcast.net <Bamaengineer@comcast.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 1:53 PM
To: Paula Bonner <Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Melissa Hadley
<melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com>; Tymon Wallace <ghost4359@gmail.com>; Carlos Gant
<cgant@gantllc.com>
Cc: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Clair Dorough
<Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: RE: Abundant Life Subdivision & Site Plan

 
Ladies,

mailto:Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:ghost4359@gmail.com
mailto:cgant@gantllc.com
mailto:pastorhooks@cloud.com
mailto:abundantlife3@att.net
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/




 
Can we meet tomorrow around 12:30/1 pm?  I need to start tracking the comments
and reach an understanding with the Ordinances and what is expected.  If what is
shown on the mark up Sheets, then most of those are attainable.  Also, I can explain
what someone thinks is a bust on the Grading Plan (negative drainage towards the
building.  There isn't a turndown sidewalk there, therefore there isn't a 6-inch increase
in elevation.  Also, I need to know what you are looking for in setback and drainage
information.  Is there no storm water retention on pavement areas?  These are just a
few items here.  
 
 
Sincerely,
Clyde Ashley

On 02/27/2024 12:16 PM CST bamaengineer@comcast.net wrote:
 
 
Paula,
 
Thanks so much for the attachment.  I already had it,, but thanks again.  
 
I guess that I am trying to figure out what I am missing here.  I am sorry
that I am.
 
I have provided the square footages of all the different area in square
feet.  I might not have gone into the intensity, because using the square
footages is what I am familiar with.  
 
Maybe I need to come in and have it explained to me, what exactly it is
that y'all are looking for.  I have seen Melissa's mark ups and most of
them I understand.  I have a different way of showing, just like many
others.  I can adjust too, which is no problem.  
 
Do y'all have time over the next few days to sit down and talk?  I have an
opening from 12:30 tomorrow afternoon, if that is acceptable.
 
 
Thanks,
Clyde

On 02/27/2024 12:04 PM CST Paula Bonner
<paula.bonner@cityofbayminetteal.gov> wrote:
 
 
Mr. Ashley,
 
Attached is a copy of the City of Bay Minette Zoning Ordinance

mailto:bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:paula.bonner@cityofbayminetteal.gov


and Subdivision Regulations which are the standards that have
to be met.
 
Thank you,
 
Paula S. Bonner
Planner Associate
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7066
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

 

From: Bamaengineer@comcast.net
<Bamaengineer@comcast.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 11:49 AM
To: Melissa Hadley <melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com>; Paula
Bonner <Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Tymon
Wallace <ghost4359@gmail.com>; Carlos Gant
<cgant@gantllc.com>
Cc: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>;
Clair Dorough <Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: RE: Abundant Life Subdivision & Site Plan
 
Melissa,
 
I just called you and left a phone message.  Please call me at
(251)422-8914.  
 
I'm not certain that I am tracking what you are saying here. 
The Design Analysis shows each item in square footages.  I
used the method that we use in Mobile.  Is there something
different here?
 
Thanks,
Clyde

https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/
mailto:Bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:Bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:ghost4359@gmail.com
mailto:cgant@gantllc.com
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV


 You don't often get email from bamaengineer@comcast.net.
Learn why this is important  

On 02/27/2024 11:25 AM CST Melissa Hadley
<melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com> wrote:
 
 
We are in receipt of your design analysis but they do
not conform with the regulations.
 
Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, AICP

Project Manager, Engineering
T: 251.626.2626
C: 850.353.3330
D: 251.380.8746
E: melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
2039 Main Street
Mailing: PO Box 1127
Daphne, AL 36526
Building Communities

 

From: Bamaengineer@comcast.net
<Bamaengineer@comcast.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 11:19 AM
To: Paula Bonner
<Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>;
Tymon Wallace <ghost4359@gmail.com>; Carlos
Gant <cgant@gantllc.com>
Cc: Jessica Peed
<Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Clair
Dorough
<Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>;
Melissa Hadley <melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com>
Subject: Re: Abundant Life Subdivision & Site Plan
 

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] DO NOT CLICK links or attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Ladies,
 

mailto:bamaengineer@comcast.net
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
http://www.gmcnetwork.com/video
http://www.gmcnetwork.com/
mailto:Bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:Bamaengineer@comcast.net
mailto:Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:ghost4359@gmail.com
mailto:cgant@gantllc.com
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com


I'm not certain that I understand a portion of these
comments.   Back on the 19th of February I sent a
Design Analysis with a the entire storm water
design.  The email was sent around 6:30 pm ion the
evening.  Did you not get the email?
 
Do you require hard copies or will the digital
suffice?  I thought that the digital would suffice. 
Please let me know.  
 
Attached is the said Design Analysis.
 
 
Sincerely,
Clyde Ashley

On 02/27/2024 10:55 AM CST Paula
Bonner
<paula.bonner@cityofbayminetteal.gov>
wrote:
 
 

Good morning,
 
Please find attached the review letter
and marked up plans from Melissa with
GMC for the site plan application (SP-
24001) for the Abundant Life new
fellowship hall.  I have also listed below
deficient items required for staff review.

As of this date the final plat for the
subdivision to combine 5 lots (SD-
24003) has not been submitted
and the application is incomplete. 
The site plan for the fellowship
hall cannot be approved/reviewed
until the subdivision is approved. 
A current certified survey.
A site plan per 08.09.06 Minimum

mailto:paula.bonner@cityofbayminetteal.gov


Requirements for Submittals

e. The density or intensity of
land use to be allocated to all
parts of the site together with
tabulations by acreage and
percentages thereof itemized
by use and density. Site
calculations shall include the
detailed information on the
dimensions and/or area of
the following:

1. Existing Structure
square footage
2. Proposed Structure
square footage
3. Existing Impervious
Surface area including
parking areas and
access/driveways
4. Proposed
Impervious Surface
area including parking
areas and
access/driveways
5. Proposed
Landscaped/Open
Space areas
6. Number of Parking
Spaces provided with
dimensions and
provisions for
accessible parking and
travel paths

Once these requirements are submitted,
we will continue the review. 
 
Paula S. Bonner
Planner Associate
 

City of Bay Minette



Planning & Development Services
Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7066
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services
Department Site

 

https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/


 
 
 

SP-24001 
Large Format Plans Submitted 

Under Separate Cover 
 
 

See Exhibit A 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

Planning Commission - Site Plan Staff Report 
 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: March 14, 2024                                                                 Case Number: SP-24002 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Plasmine Technology 
Property Location: 251 Newport Parkway 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-02-10-3-000-029.000 // 35534 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-02-10-3-000-082.000 // 62861 
Property Size: 30.43± acres 

Requested Action: Site Plan Approval for tank farm expansion and 
parking area 
Applicant/Engineer: Bryan Wiggins, Plasmine Plant Manager 
Property Owner:  Plasmine Technology 
251 Newport Parkway, Bay Minette, AL 36507

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

The subject property consists of approximately 30.43± acres, and is zoned M-2, General Industrial District. The property is located at 251 
Newport Parkway and adjacent to the CSX Railroad on the North and a railspur along the Western property line. Directly across Newport 
Parkway is existing single family residential. Adjacent to the East is property owned/used by North Baldwin Utilities and to the Northeast is 
property owned by Stella-Jones pole mill company.  

Plasmine is a Gum and Wood Chemicals manufacturing facility that produces paper additives, concrete air entrainment additives, adhesive 
additives and related products from purchased Tall Oil Rosin and other ingredients. Existing structures include a primary building 
containing administration offices, a warehouse used for storing oil and other fluids, and multiple contained process areas.  The site plan 
request is for the construction/installation of 24 additional rosin tanks with a tanker trailer storage area and additional off-street parking. The 
proposed tanker trailer storage area will be located in the southeast corner of the property along the north right of way of Newport Pkwy.  

ZONING  
 

6.4.2   M-2 General Industrial District. It is the intent of this district to provide opportunity for the location of industrial, manufacturing, 
processing, warehousing, or research and testing operations that, due to employment of heavy equipment or machinery or to the 
nature of the materials and processes employed, require special location and development safeguards to prevent pollution of the 
environment by noise, vibration, odors or other factors, and may also require extensive sites for storage and parking, may require 
extensive community facilities or generate heavy motor traffic. Access to major transportation facilities is usually needed. Locations 
should be in accordance with comprehensive plans and special review is required for some. 

 
5.2  Words and Terms Defined  

MANUFACTURING, GENERAL. Manufacturing, processing, assembling, storing, testing, and similar industrial uses which are generally 
major operations and extensive in character; require large sites, open storage and service areas, extensive services and facilities, ready 
access to regional transportation and normally generate some nuisances such as smoke, noise, vibration, dust, glare, air pollution, and 
water pollution, but not beyond the district boundary. 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
SP-24002 M-2 Plasmine 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
North M-2, B-2 Railroad, Commercial, Industrial & Utility property 
South R-3, R-5 Residential 
East M-2 Industrial & Utility property 
West M-2, B-2 Railroad 



MANUFACTURING, LIGHT. Manufacturing or other industrial uses which are usually controlled operations; relatively clean, quiet, and free 
of objectionable or hazardous elements such as smoke, noise, odor, or dust; operating and storing within enclosed structures; and, 
generating little industrial traffic and no nuisances. 

DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY COMMENTS 
North Baldwin Utilities – No comments received. 
Bay Minette Public Works – No comments received.  
Bay Minette Police Department – No comments received. 
Bay Minette Fire Department – Comments addressed at Pre-App 

and at Permitting Stage 

Baldwin County E-911 – Address Correction needed  
Goodwin, Mills & Cawood – City Consultant as Transportation & 

Site Engineer – See Attached 

MAPPING 

  Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

Locator Map  Site Map  

STAFF ANALYSIS 

Site plan reviews shall be accomplished by the Planning Commission to assure compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance to 
ensure conformity with its purpose. The proposed project has been evaluated by staff against the criteria in accordance with Section 8.09 

Site Plan. It shall be the responsibility of the owner/developer to show (prove) compliance with the requirements of this Ordinance. 



Site Calculations

1.) The density or intensity of land use to be allocated to all parts of the site 
together with tabulations by acreage and percentages thereof itemized by use 
and density.  

There are currently 35 existing rosin storage tanks on site and an additional 24 
are proposed. According to submittals, more than 40% of the 29-acre parcel is 
impervious or improved. The proposed tanks will be located on poured 
concrete pads with surrounding concrete secondary containment walls. The 
tanks will be stainless steel with the tank height approximately 26’ which is less 
than 35ft maximum. The tanks will be approximately 16 ft in diameter and 
require approximately 201 sq ft of concrete foundation area.   

2.) The location, size and character of any common open space, commonly owned 
facilities and form of organization which will own and maintain any common 
open space and such facilities.  

Not applicable to this development.  

3.) The use and maximum height, bulk and location of all buildings and other 
structures to be located on the site.  

See Item #1 above and attached plans 

4.) The substance of covenants, grants of easements or other restrictions which will 
be imposed upon the use of the land, buildings and structures, including 
proposed easements or grants for public utilities or other purposes.  

Not applicable to this development.  

5.) The provisions for disposition of open space, including tree protection, landscaping provisions and buffering requirements.   



A minimum of fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area shall be landscaped or maintained as open green space. The site is largely 
existing open space/natural areas and post-development will exceed the minimum requirements. A full landscaping plan was provided, 
however, since the front is proposed to be screened by a fence along Newport, no new landscaping is proposed beyond the provision of 
sodded/seeded areas around the proposed off-street parking and tanker trailer parking area. Pages in the plan submittals also detail tree 
protection measures of existing trees.  
 
According to Section 8.09.05 and 8.09.06, the Planning Commission has the option to waive the requirements for the submittal of 
certain information for Site Plan applications, including Landscape Plans.  

The primary Landscaping requirements to consider for the site are detailed below:  

a.) Buffering:  
Buffer zone requirements shall be based on the proposed developing use 
and the existing abutting use, regardless of current zoning districts:   

10.11.01 (c) “Where an industrial district or use abuts any part of a two-
family or single-family residential district or use, a buffer zone 30 feet 
wide shall be required.” 

This parcel abuts M-2 zoned property to the North, East and West that is 
heavily industrial, including the railroad and rail spur. To the South is 
existing R-3 zoned single family residential uses. There appears to be 
compliant buffering as the applicant is proposing to construct/install 
screened fencing to secure the site and keep the facility screened from 
adjacent properties. The screened portion of the fence must be a 
minimum of 6-ft in height.  

b.) Open Space & Landscape Provisions // General:  
A minimum of 15% total lot area must be landscaped or maintained as open green space. The site is largely maintained as open green 
space or will remain as undisturbed natural forest area and post-development will exceed the minimum requirements.  
c.) Tree Protection Zone / Removal / Replacement:  
Trees are noted for preservation in the submitted plans along with protection measures.  
d.) Greenbelt Zone:  
Not applicable to this development, the property is not located in the Greenbelt Zone. 

e.) Landscape Provisions // Off-Street Parking:   

Industrial Uses require one parking space per each employee on the maximum working shift and one space for each vehicle operating 
from the site. Submitted information states there are currently 47 parking spaces for employees and visitors with the maximum 
employees on site not to exceed 33. The proposed off-street parking will provide 48 spaces and there are no areas with more than 12 
parking spaces to require landscaped islands.  As noted above, , no new landscaping is proposed beyond the provision of 
sodded/seeded areas around the proposed off-street parking and tanker trailer parking area. 

6.) In the case of plans which call for development over a period of years, a schedule showing the proposed times within which applications 
for building permits are intended to be filed.  

Not applicable to this development.  

7.) Where required by the Alabama Department of Transportation (“ALDOT”), the Building Official shall be provided proof that the applicant 
has submitted a driveway permit application to ALDOT.  In the event that any type of traffic study is required by the ALDOT, copies thereof 
shall be provided to the Building Official.  

Not applicable to this development.  

8.) Front and side architectural elevations.  
Section 8.6 Metal Buildings is not applicable to this development. 

9.) The location and size of all signs to be located on the site.  In the event that a sign is pre-existing and fails to conform to the requirements 
as set forth in this ordinance, site plan approval will be granted only under the condition that all signs will comply with the regulations as 
set forth in the sign ordinance.  
Current submittals do not include proposals for new or altered signage, however, signage will require a Sign Permit prior to 
construction/installation and staff will review for compliance with the full sign ordinance at that time.  



10.) Landscape plans.  

See notations above 
 

11.) Any additional data, plans or specifications which the applicant or the City believes is pertinent and which will assist in clarifying the 
application including, but not limited to plans for screening, lighting and space, surface drainage, erosion and sediment control, water and 
sewer connections, landscaping, and signs.  
Comments from the City’s Engineering Consultant are attached. Items #1 and #2 have been addressed, but the remaining items can be 
addressed by revised submittals. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Overall, the proposal appears to be generally compatible with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance with minor impacts on the site, however, 
the comments from the City’s Engineering Consultant (Items 3-14) need to be addressed. Staff’s recommendation is for Planning 
Commission approval of the project with the requirement that issuance of a building permit or final inspection be contingent upon the 
applicant working with staff and the City’s engineer for submittal and review of documentation meeting the engineering recommendations. 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
For Site Plan Approval, no public hearing is required.  

The Planning Commission makes the final decision and has the option to: 
• Approve the Site Plan as presented 
• Approve the Site Plan with conditions, stating the conditions required 
• Deny the Site Plan, with stated factors for the denial 
• Table the Site Plan Request, due to lack of information 

 
Upon approval of the site plan, either as submitted or with changes and/or special conditions required by the Planning Commission, the 
Building Official may issue a building permit for a portion or all of the proposed development; provided that the application is in compliance 
with all applicable City, County, State and Federal requirements. 

8.9.10.4  Site Plan requests that are tabled, will not receive further review by the Planning Commission until all additional information requested has 
been received and reviewed for compliance by the Planning Department. 

8.9.10.5  Site Plan requests that are denied will not receive further review by the Planning Commission until all noted deficiencies have been 
addressed and revised documentation received and reviewed for compliance by the Planning Department. 

8.9.10.6  Any resubmittals, revisions, additional information or permit applications related to the application must be received within 180 days from 
the date of Planning Commission action, or a new Site Plan Application will be required. One request for Site Plan Approval Extension of 
up to 180 days will be reviewed administratively. 

















8005 Morris Hill Road 
Semmes, AL  36575 

Phone (251) 649-4011 
Fax (251) 645-0971 

 
 

                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 1 of 10 
 

Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative 
 

Existing Site Conditions:  
Plasmine Technology, Inc. is located at 251 Newport Pkwy, Bay minette, AL. The proposed trailer storage area 
will be located in the southeast corner of the property along the north right of way of Newport Pkwy. Currently 
there is a 0.35-acre asphalt parking lot located in the southeast corner of the property. The total pre-development 
drainage area is approximately 5.18 acres. Roughly 2.46 acres are currently wooded, and 1.2 acres are covered in 
heavy grass. The area currently drains south to Newport Pkwy right of way.  See Drainage Area maps in 
Appendix E. 
 
Proposed Site Development:  
The site is intended to be used as a tanker trailer storage and off-street parking area. All construction will be at 
grade level with no vertical construction.  A 1.6-acre concrete surface will be provided for the tanker trailer 
storage area. A 0.4-acre asphalt parking lot will be provided for office parking. All concrete parking surface will 
be contained within the interconnected north and south ponds and discharge will be controlled by slide gate valves 
to decrease the risk of contamination in case of tanker trailer spillage. 
 
Primary site access during construction and operation will be from Newport pkwy, a paved, public right of way 
serving several industrial facilities, near and adjacent to this project.  
 
The developed areas will be fenced and gated to limit access onto the site.  
 
Two storm water retention ponds, North Pond and South Pond, will be constructed. To meet SPCC 
recommendations these should be sized to contain the 25-YR, 24 HR storm runoff from the area they will receive 
storm water from.  However, these ponds have been designed to contain the calculated 100-Year, 24-Hour storm 
runoff.  The ponds will be interconnected via a 24” diameter reinforced concrete pipe with a slide gate valve in 
the north pond outfall structure. The south pond outfall structure will include an additional slide gate valve to 
prevent discharge from both the north and south ponds during rain events.  These valves will only be opened after 
impounded storm water has been tested and is found to be free of potential chemical leakage. The outfalls of both 
ponds will discharge water to a riprap pad adjacent to the existing Newport Pkwy right of way once the valves are 
opened.  
 
A smaller storm water detention pond, Office Parking lot pond will be constructed to meet the stormwater 
detention requirements for the office parking lot. The pond outfall will also drain to the riprap pad adjacent to the 
existing Newport Pkwy right of way separate from the north and south pond outfall.  
 
See Drainage Area maps in Appendix E. 
 
Methodology:  
Methodology used to assess the hydrology and hydraulics of the existing and proposed conditions are considered 
regionally acceptable by multiple governing jurisdictions within the state of Alabama. They are as follows:  

ꞏ Modified Rational Method for converting rainfall to runoff (Appendix D: Driven Engineering Inc. 
Calculation Spreadsheets). 

 ꞏ TR55 for calculating retention pond volume. (See appendix C for calculations) 
 
 
 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 2 of 10 
 

 
 
Results:  
The results of the analysis are provided as appendices of this narrative; however, we have summarized them 
below: The drainage area map was used to determine a drainage area based on contours using topographic survey 
data. 
 
Pre- and Post- Development Runoff: 
The Pre-Development drainage area to the subject outfall location including portions of the site to not be 
developed is 5.18-acres. The calculated pre-development runoff for a 10-yr storm is 13.32 cfs, and a 100-yr return 
period storm is 16.75 cfs. (see page 6 for more details)  The outfall pipe size for the containment/detainment 
ponds was chosen to be a 15” to throttle the flow once the valves are opened. The parking lot pond flow would be 
finished by the time the valves are opened.  During a storm event up to a 100-yr storm, the calculated post-
development discharge will be no more than 4.24 cfs from the parking lot pond only (see page 8).  After the 100-
yr storm event is over, the off street parking pond outflow should be finished, and after testing the water the site’s 
gate valves may be opened from the larger ponds.  At that point no more than 4.96 cfs will be discharging, which 
is manning’s full flow from a 15” pipe @ 0.5%, still less than calculated pre-development peak discharge.  All of 
this is designed to enter a riprap stilling basin before exiting the site to the current discharge area in the existing 
ROW.  At no time will calculated post-development peak flows exceed 40% of pre-development peak flows.  
Appendix D, Page 7 calculates a likely never to be needed emergency overflow for the two large ponds that 
assumes if all ponds have filled up due to a 100-year rain event and another 100-year event occurs, the overflow 
weir will need to be roughly 16 ft wide at the available depth, to prevent a blow-out of the pond berms. 

 
North and South Pond: 
Drainage area 1 is 2.57 +/- AC for the north & south detention ponds. The current use of the land is wooded and 
grassy. After construction, 1.45-acres will be paved parking and trailer storage and 0.9-acres used for detention, 
with the remaining area (0.22 acres) being grassed.  The pond volume was checked using a depth of 10 inches of 
rain per the SCS rainfall intensity map for Bay Minette, AL for a 25-year, 24- hour storm (Appendix A, Fig B-6.) 
The volume was also checked for the 12-inch rainfall depth acquired from the 100-year, 24-hour storm (Appendix 
B, Fig B-8.)  Regardless of the finished surfaces within this area we have assumed no infiltration and no 
evaporation for a very conservative estimate of needed containment volume.  See Appendix C, page 5 for volume 
calculations. 
 
Office Parking Pond: 

Drainage area 2 is 0.90 +/- AC for the office parking lot pond. The current use of the land is mostly grass, with a 
0.35-acre asphalt parking lot. After construction, 0.38-acres will be asphalted for office parking with the rest 
remaining grassy area. The pond volume was calculated for a 50-year storm being detained and limiting the 
outflow to a 10-yr storm release rate as required by the City of Bay Minette. (See Appendix D: Driven 
Engineering Inc. Modified Rational Method Drainage Calculation Spreadsheet, on page 8).  

 
The point of discharge will be armored with riprap for energy dissipation and erosion control.  
 
 
 

Prepared by Nathan Williams, EI 

 

Approved by Avalisha Fisher, P.E. 

Nathan Williams
Pencil



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 3 of 10 
 

 

Appendix A: 25-YR, 24-HR Rainfall Chart 

 

Figure B-6: 25-Year, 24-Hour Rainfall 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 4 of 10 
 

Appendix B: 100-YR, 24-HR Rainfall Chart 

 

Figure B-8: 100-YR, 24 -HR Rainfall 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 5 of 10 
 

Appendix C: TR-55 Pond Volume Calculations 

 

 

Assumptions: No Infiltration and No evaporation,  

every drop of rain will be stored in the detention ponds: 

 

Drainage Area 1 = 2.57 AC 

25-YR, 24-HR Rainfall from Figure B-6 Appendix A for Bay Minette, AL = 10” 

100-YR, 24-HR Rainfall from Figure B-8 Appendix B for Bay Minette, AL = 12” 

 

Pond Volume Required for 25 YR Storm = 

(2.57 AC) x (43,560 SF) x (0.83 FT) = 92,900 CF 

 

Pond Volume Required for 100 YR Storm = 

(2.57 AC) x (43,560 SF) x (1 FT) = 112,000 CF 

 

At Emergency Overflow EL: 262.25 

North Pond Volume = 54,851 CF 

South Pond Volume = 61,114 CF 

Total Pond Volume = 115,965 CF > 100 YR STORM EVENT RUNOFF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 6 of 10 
 

Appendix D: Driven Engineering Inc. Modified Rational  

Method Drainage Calculation Spreadsheets 

 

www.drivenengineering.com

8005 Morris Hill Road
Semmes, AL  36575 Project Number
(251)649-4011

Date:
PROJECT NAME

Runoff Coefficient Determination
Pre-Development

Area Acres Coefficient C*A
Exist. imPerviou 0.35 0.9 0.32
pervious 4.83 0.25 1.21
semi 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Area 5.18
Weighted Average= 0.29 1.52

Pre and Post Flow Data For 10, 50 and 100 Year Storms In CFS:
(Note: Post runoff values represent flow to detention, not flow from the site.)

Q 10 Pre= 13.32 Q 10 Post= 0.00 I10 8.75 in/hr
Q 25 Pre= 13.85 Q 25 Post= 0.00 I25 9.10 in/hr
Q 50 Pre= 15.38 Q 50 Post= 0.00 I50 10.10 in/hr
Q 100Pre= 16.75 Q 100 Post= 0.00 I100 11.00 in/hr

2/29/2024

23105

Plasmine Predevelopment Outfall Location Runoff

 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 7 of 10 
 

www.drivenengineering.com

8005 Morris Hill Road
Semmes, AL  36575 Project Number
(251)649-4011

Date:
PROJECT NAME

Runoff Coefficient Determination
Pre-Development Post-Development

Area Acres Coefficient C*A Area Acres Coefficient C*A
Exist. Pervious 2.57 0.35 0.90 Tot Imperv 1.45 0.9 1.31

0.00 Proposed Pervious 0.00
0.00 0.00

0.00
Total Area 2.57 Undev 1.12 0.35 0.39
Weighted Average= 0.35 0.90 Weighted Average= 0.66 1.70

Q 100Pre= 9.89 Q 100 Post= 18.67 I100 11.00 in/hr
Depth of emergency overflow 0.50 ft

Min. Overflow weir length = 15.86 ft

3/5/2024

23105

EMERGENCY OVERFLOW FOR ENTIRE AREA assumes all ponds full and another 100yr storm hits

 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 8 of 10 
 

www.drivenengineering.com

8005 Morris Hill Road
Semmes, AL  36575 Project Number
(251)649-4011

Date:
PROJECT NAME

Runoff Coefficient Determination
Pre-Development Post-Development

Area Acres Coefficient C*A Area Acres Coefficient C*A
Exist. imperviou 0.40 0.9 0.36 Pervious 0.35 0.25 0.09
pervious 0.50 0.25 0.13 Proposed 0.55 0.90 0.50

0.00 0.00
0.00

Total Area 0.90 Total 0.90 0.00
Weighted Average= 0.54 0.49 Weighted Average= 0.32 0.58
Pre and Post Flow Data For 10, 50 and 100 Year Storms In CFS: Q increase
(Note: Post runoff values represent flow to detention, not flow from the site.) if not detained

Q 10 Pre= 4.24 Q 10 Post= 5.10 I10 8.75 in/hr 0.85
Q 25 Pre= 4.41 Q 25 Post= 5.30 I25 9.10 in/hr 0.89
Q 50 Pre= 4.90 Q 50 Post= 5.88 I50 10.10 in/hr 0.98
Q 100Pre= 5.34 Q 100 Post= 6.41 I100 11.00 in/hr 1.07

Post Development Control Structure to meet Design release rate
Exist. Rel. Rate(CFS)= 4.24
Forced Release Rate (cfs)= 0.00 cubic feet
Release Rate used for calcs (cfs)= 4.24
Pond/Box Invert= 259.50 Height of weir box slot 1.50 ft
Pond Storage 
elevation/ 
Popoff= 261.00 Depth of emergency overflow 0.30 ft
Top of berm= 261.50 Freeboard required 0.20 ft
Req'd Slot width= 0.69 ft
Min. Overflow weir length = 11.71 ft
Outflow Rate allowed 10 Yr Storm
Pond Size Required 50 Yr Storm
Rainfall Rainfall Peak allowable release Storm Storm Required
Duration Intensity Inflow release intensity Inflow Outflow Storage
(Minutes) (Inches) (CFS) (cfs) (inches) (Cubic Ft) (Cubic Ft) (Cubic Ft)

5 10.1 5.88325 4.24 8.75 1764.98 1273.13 491.85
6 9.9 5.76675 4.24 8.42 2076.03 1527.75 548.28
7 9.7 5.65025 4.24 8.13 2373.11 1782.38 590.73
8 9.5 5.53375 4.24 7.86 2656.20 2037.00 619.20
9 9.2 5.359 4.24 7.61 2893.86 2291.63 602.24

10 9 5.2425 4.24 7.38 3145.50 2546.25 599.25
11 8.65 5.038625 4.24 7.15 3325.49 2800.88 524.62

Detention Pond Capacity:
Description Volume

elevation
area of 
contour (sf)

volume incr  
to elev (cf)

total vol to 
elev (cf) length width (Cubic Feet)

259.5 698
260 892 397.5 397.5

Popoff el 261 1320 1106 1503.5
Top Berm 261.5 1503.5

Greatest Required Storage 619.2
Provided Volume is…… ok

2/29/2024

23105

Maximum Detention Volume Calculated Below:
619.20

Plasmine Car Parking Lot

 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 9 of 10 
 

APPENDIX E: DRAINAGE AREAS MAPS 

 

 

Pre-Development areas: 

 



   Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
Trailer Storage & Off-Street Parking 

Drainage Narrative                 

 

                                                                                                                                                             www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 10 of 10 
 

 

Post-development areas: 

 









From: Jessica Peed
Cc: COBM_Planning
Bcc: AL Tolbert; ALDOT; ALDOT1; Brandon Bias; Jason Padgett; Jeff Donald; Lee Walters; Melissa Hadley; Mike

Minchew; Murray Stewart; Samantha Roberts; Scott Warner; Steven W. Stewart
Subject: COMMENTS REQUESTED: SP-24002, Plasmine Project
Date: Thursday, February 8, 2024 1:17:00 PM
Attachments: SP-24002, Plasmine Comments Packet.pdf

image001.png

Good afternoon,
 
Attached are the submittals for the Plasmine project located at 251 Newport Parkway. Included in the
attachment is the application with site location, boundary survey, drainage narrative, and drawing details
and elevations.  Due to size, I am unable to send the Design Calculations in this email so if you would
like to see that, please let me know and I will send to you separately.
If there is any additional information that you would like to review, please advise.
 
If you have any comments or concerns, please let me know.
 
Thank you,
 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

 
 

mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:AL.Tolbert@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:"smithmi@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:"aaronb@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:brandon.bias@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:jpadgett@nbumail.com
mailto:JDonald@NBUMAIL.COM
mailto:lee.walters@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Murray.Stewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:sroberts@baldwin911.org
mailto:swarner@baldwin911.org
mailto:SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/







E 1ST ST


NEWPORT PKWY


E 2ND ST


N WHITE AVE


E 3RD ST


BR
OW


NW
OO


D A
VE


S HOYLE AVE


LEIGH ST


COBB CT


PO
WE


LL
 AV


E


SO
WE


LL
 AV


E


NESBIT ST


N U S HWY 31  


TO
WN


SE
ND


 AV
E


KENNESAW AVE
AB


ER
NA


TH
Y A


VE


MCCONNELL AVE


BLACKBURN AVE
MA


RI
ET


TA
 ST


MA
NN


OR
 D


R


KCS, Baldwin County, Pictometry


¯


0 310 620155
Feet


Site Map
SP-24002, Plasmine Technology, Inc. Property


Site Use Approval for Addition of Storage Tanks & Parking
Site Location
Road Centerlines
BC Revenue Parcels


City of Bay Minette
Map Date 01/29/2024


SP-24002 Site











8005 Morris Hill Road
Semmes, AL  36575


Phone (251) 649-4011
Fax (251) 645-0971


   


                                                             


                                                                                                                                                          www.drivenengineering.com                                                              Page 1 of 1 


January 25, 2024 


Bryan Wiggins 
Plant Manager 
Plasmine Technology, Inc. 
251 Newport Parkway 
Bay minette, AL 36507 


RE: Plasmine Site Plan Submittal  Drainage Narrative 
Driven Engineering Project No. 24003 


Dear Mr. Wiggins: 


EXISTING SITE DESCRIPTION: 


The current Plasmine Facility is located in the northeast corner of Newport Parkway and
the CSX Railroad. The site slopes generally to the northeast to an existing storm water pond. 
Currently the site run-off is directed to the existing stormwater pond. Undeveloped areas of the 
property include grass areas and timber areas. Access to the site is from Newport Parkway on the 
south side of the property. Improvements currently on-site include buildings, rigid pavements and 
miscellaneous features associated with the storage and transfer of various liquid products. 


 
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION: 


Proposed construction includes 24 Ground Storage Tanks at various locations and a New 
Rigid Pavement Parking Lot in a currently wooded area in the southeast corner of the site. 
Stormwater for all new construction will be contained within curbs or dikes and discharge will be 
controlled by normally closed pipe and mechanically operated valves. On-site personnel will 
ensure stormwater from new facilities is free of pollutants prior to discharge to existing 
stormwater facilities on site. No discharge from new facilities will be permitted during rainfall 
events. If necessary, runoff from new facilities will be pumped into trucks, removed from the site 
and disposed of in accordance with current local, state and federal requirements. The proposed 
construction of storage tanks and rigid pavement parking area will not increase site stormwater 
runoff during any storm event. No alteration to existing drainage features will be required. 


 
Sincerely,  
Driven Engineering, Inc. 
 
 
 
Avalisha Fisher, P.E. 
For the Firm 



















1608 Burtonwood Dr.
FOLEY, AL., 36535


(251)-752-7017
WWW.BEYONDMEASURESURVEYING.COM


BEYOND MEASURE
SURVEYING


REVISION DATE PROJECT NO.:


DATED:


SCALE 1" =


DRAWN BY:


CHECKED BY:


BEY
O


N
D


 M


EAS UR E  SU
R


V
E


Y
ING


90'


251 Newport Parkway


Plasmine Technology Inc


Property Boundary Survey


Bay Minette, AL 36507


11/7/2023


JRH


JRH


CG_SETTIN GS


Property Boundary Survey
FOR: Plasmine Technology, Inc.


The Basis of Bearings for this survey is Alabama State Plane Grid (West Zone).


The centerlines and fence lines as depicted on this plat are shown
graphically as straight lines between random locations as measured.
These lines may actually meander between these end points


                      LEGEND


E E E


= REBAR FOUND(1/2" cap illegible)


= IRON PIPE FOUND
= STEEL POST FOUND


= SURVEY POINT, NO MONUMENT
= MEASURED DIMENSIONM
= RECORD DIMENSIONR


= CALCULATED DIMENSIONC
                      = FENCE LINE FOUND
                      = APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE
                      = APPARENT RIGHT-OF-WAY


BMS 40196-S flush)


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:
I, Reese Harpel, a licensed surveyor in the State of Alabama, hereby
state that the attached is a correct map or plat for property situated
in Baldwin County, Alabama and further state that this survey has
been completed in accordance with the requirements of the
Standards of Practice for Surveying in the State of Alabama, this
7th day of November, 2023.


____________________________
Reese Harpel
AL PLS#40196-S


No.
40196-S


STATE OF


J
A


M
E


S  R .  HAR
P


E
L


R


EG I S T ERED


AMABALA


R


OYEVRUS DN


A
L


Relative Error of Closure
Suburban
1'/7,500' & 20" X sq.root of # of angles


No.
40196-S


STATE OF


J
A


M
E


S  R .  HAR
P


E
L


R


EG I S T ERED


AMABALA


R


OYEVRUS DN


A
L


Site Data:
Zoning - City of Bay Minette M2 (General Industrial District)
Site Area -
Building Setbacks


Front - 30'
Rear - 0'
Side -0'


Property is located within a Zone "X" Area of minimal Flood Hazard as
shown on FEMA maps for the City of Bay Minette Baldwin County, AL
Community#010004, Map#01003CO294M, effective date 4/19/2019


251 Newport Parkway
Bay Minette AL, 36507
Parcel#05-23-02-10-3-000-029.000
PIN 35534
Current Title Holder - Plasmine Technology, Inc
3298 Summit Blvd. Pensacola FL, 32503


Additions or deletions to survey drawings by any other person(s)
than the signing party or parties is prohibited without written consent
of the signing party or parties.


Surveyor's Notes:
- Approval of all applicable Federal, State and Local
Agencies, including all MS4, Storm Water runoff,
Wetland delineation, Special Flood Hazard areas shall
be required prior to the issuance of a Land
Disturbance Permit
- All Survey work for Plasmine tract has been
performed without the benefit of an up to date Title
Search, Title Committment, Abstract or other
documentation provided by client. There may be
recorded or unrecorded documentation or items which
would normally appear as exceptions in a Title
Commitment Policy which may have a direct effect
upon the findings of this survey
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.461, 4/12/1947
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.453, 6/20/1947
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.457, 6/20/1947
- See CSX Valuation Map V17857 Sta 0+00 - Sta
54+98, 6/30/1917


North Baldwin Utilities
Instr#1206208, 11/4/2009


Plasmine Technology, Inc.
Instr#799995, 4/5/2004


Parcel 1


258.17'(M)
258.15'(PS)


EAST 258'(R)


91
4.


92
'(M


)


91
5 .


24
'(M


)


257.46'(M)


21
6.


33
'(M


)


275.90'(M)


91
4.


90
' (P


S
)


91
5'


(R
)


257.46'(PS)
WEST 258'(R)


21
6.


33
'(P


S
)


56.88'(M)


866.86'(M)
863.69'(PS)
867.50'(R)


57.00'(R)


11
8 6


.8
9'


275.90'(PS)
275.00'(R)


11
31


. 2
5'


(M
)


12
71


.0
0 '


(R
)


North Baldwin Utilities
Instrument#1240316
Commence at the Southeast Corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, T2S, R3E, thence run
North a distance of 25 feet along the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter; thence run West a
distance of 1,190 feet along a line parallel to and north of the South Boundary of said Southwest
Quarter to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Thence run North a distance of 240 feet, more or less,
along a line west of and parallel to the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point; thence
run West a distance of 260 feet, more or less, along a line parallel to and north of the South
Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point; thence run South a distance of 240 feet, more or
less, along a line west of and parallel to the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point;
thence run East a distance of 260 feet, more or less, along a line parallel to and north of the South
Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING.


PARCEL l
From the Southeast Corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East, Baldwin County, Alabama;
run thence West along South line of said Section 10, 1429 feet to a point; thence North 43 feet to an iron marker, said point being
the Southeast Comer of Parcel No. 2, as recorded in Deed Book 52, pages 129-130 of the Probate Record; from said point run


therefrom a triangular portion of 30 foot roadway easement over and across extreme Southeast Comer of above described
property.


PARCEL2
From the Southwest Corner of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East; run South 89"23'30" East, 63.00 feet; thence run


Being the same property conveyed to James Graham Brown Foundation, Inc., a Kentucky Corporation, to Reichhold Chemicals,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation by deed dated February 27, 1974 and recorded March l, 1974 in Deed Book 458, page 710, Probate
Court Records of Baldwin County, Alabama.


PARCEL3
Beginning at a point 63 feet East and l00 feet North of the Southwest corner of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East;
thence due East 867 feet to a point; thence due North 1185 feet to a point on the South line of the right-of-way of the Main Line of
the Louisville & Nashville Railroad Co.; thence Westerly and Southerly along the said line of right-of-way of the Main Line of the
said Louisville & Nashville Railroad Company and the East line of the right-of-way of the Bay Minette &. Fort Morgan Railroad
1241 feet to the place of beginning.


PARCEL 4
Commencing at a point 63 feet East and 100 feet North of the South Corner of Section l0, thence due East 867 feet, which is the
Point of Beginning for this parcel; run thence due South 57 feet; thence due East 275 feet; thence due North 1271 feet to a point;
thence in a Southwester1y direction and on a line parallel with the South line of the right-of-way of the Main Line of the
Louisville & Nashville Railroad Company to a point directly North of the Point of Beginning; thence South 1108 feet along the
East line of Parcel No. 3 to the Point of Beginning.
Being the same property conveyed by Tenneco Chemicals, Inc., to Reichhold Chemicals, Inc., by deed dated July 31, 1973 and
recorded August 3, 1973 in Deed Book 448, page 971, Probate Court Records of Baldwin County Alabama, LESS AND
EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING:
From the Southwest Comer of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East, run South 89"23 '20" East, 63.00 feet; thence run
North 00
57.00 feet to a point; 


Also described as:


2639.11'Southwest corner Section
10-T2S-R3E, Baldwin County,
Alabama (record location)


WEST 1429'(R)
1433.31'(C)


43.00'(C)
43'(R)


162.97'(R)


155.68'(R)
133.80'(R)


145.22'(R)
Parcel 2


N
O


R
T


H
 1


18
5'


(R
)


Parcel 3


Parcel 4


11
31


'(R
)


140'(R)


151.86'(R)


EXCEPTION


120.17'(R)


C
1


Curve Radius Length Delta Chord Chord Bear.


C2


C
2


1328.86' 1116.92' 1084.37'


297.35'(M)


297.19'(R)


30' roadway easement shown
on Hutchinson, Moore &
Rauch survey. No recording
of easement found


1


1 paved entrance currently used by
others. Depicted on 2001 survey by
Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch. No
easement found in favor of others.


6.76'


19' 19'


6.09'


9'


no evidence of possession


Newport Parkway (50' row)


P.O.B.
"also described as"


438.03'(PS)


100.00'(PS)
Area included in
Instr#7999995


312.73'(R
)


50
'


50
'


424.50'(M
)


100.00'(M)


303.21'(M
)


Wooded


Wooded


Wooded


Improvements shown on
previous survey by
Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch
LLC 6/28/2001


Newport Parkway (50' row)


424.50'(V
al M


ap)


15
0'


50'


2


2 concrete monument
found 3.14' East of
corner


121.94'(M)


POS


50'


Curve Radius Tangent Length Delta Degree Chord Chord Bear.


C1 1225.12' 351.51' 684.63' 675.75'


POS


3


4


3


4


previous survey
corner 9.5' West
on line


previous survey
corner 9.5' West
on line


Record


1.85'


Southeast corner, Southwest
Quarter, Section 10-2S-3E,
Baldwin County, Alabama


50
'


257.50'(M)


20
8.


01
'


20
3.


6 0
'


Current owner - North Baldwin Utilities
Instr#1240316, 7/1/2010
Title Commitment No.23-001558, 9/17/2023


WEST 1190'(R)


WEST 260'(R)


1175.72'(M)


5


5


4' board fence4' board fence


G


G


C
S


S
W


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


di
r t


 r
oa


d
no


 e
vi


de
nc


e 
of


 p
os


se
ss


io
n


7' chain link fence


7' chain link fence


7'
 c


ha
in


 li
nk


 f
en


ce


5' chain link fence


chain link fence


chain lin
k fence


(local paved)


paved entrance


22.30'


water


water


Plasmine Technology, Inc
Instrument#799995


= ADJACENT DEED DIMENSIONAD


Bay Minette Industrial
Development Board and
the City of Bay Minette,
Alabama
RP 71, Pg.1974, 6/25/1980


EAST 500'(AD)


297.08'(AD)


Bay Minette Industrial
Development Board and
the City of Bay Minette,
Alabama
RP 71, Pg.1974, 6/25/1980


C
SX


 R
A


IL
W


A
Y


CSX RAILWAY


di
rt


 r
oa


d


(local paved)


Measured


                      = PARCEL LINES
                      = AERIAL UTILITY LINES
                      = BOUNDARY LINES


                      = BUILDING SETBACK LINES


P.O.B.
Surveyed Premises
"Plasmine"


P.O.B.
Surveyed Premises "North
Baldwin Utilities"


Surveyed Premises
Plasmine Technology Inc


Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section Ten (10), Township Two (2) South, Range Three (3) East, Baldwin County, Alabama, more particularly described as
follows: Beginning at a steel corner post 63.00 feet South 89 Degrees 23 Minutes 30 Seconds East and 100.00 feet North 00 Degrees 34 Minutes 40 Seconds East of the
Southwest corner of said Southwest Quarter; THENCE North 09 Degrees 03 Minutes 26 Seconds East along the Easterly right of way of the CSX railway 121.94 feet to a


the Southeast and having an arc length of 684.63 feet and a radius of 1225.12 feet, and being subtended by a chord with a distance of 675.75 feet and a bearing of North
24 Degrees 19 Minutes 48 Seconds East to a BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said right of way North 60 Degrees 12 Minutes 16 Seconds East 424.50 feet to a
BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said right of way North 29 Degrees 47 Minutes 44 Seconds West 100.00 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said
right of way North 60 Degrees 12 Minutes 16 Seconds East 303.21 feet to a steel corner post; THENCE leaving said right of way and running South 67 Degrees 13


pipe; THENCE South 00 Degrees 36 Minutes 14 Seconds West 216.33 feet to a BMS rebar on the Northerly right of way of Newport Parkway; THENCE along said
Northerly right of way North 89 Degrees 28 Minutes 30 Seconds West 275.90 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE North 00 Degrees 28 Minutes 32 Seconds East 56.88 feet to


beginning, containing 28.731 acres, more or less.
Together with and subject to all rights of way, covenants, easements and restrictions of record.


Surveyed Premises
North Baldwin Utilities


Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section Ten (10), Township Two (2) South, Range
Three (3) East, Baldwin County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a


way of Newport Parkway, 1175.72 feet South 89 Degrees 54 Minutes 11 Seconds West and 45.19 feet


Southwest Quarter;  THENCE South 89 Degrees 36 Minutes 15 Seconds West along said Northerly right
of way, 257.50 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE leaving said Northerly right of way and running


South 89 Degrees 24 Minutes 55 Seconds East 257.46 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE South 00 Degrees
36 Minutes 14 Seconds West 203.60 feet to the place of beginning, containing 1.216 acres, more or less.


Together with and subject to all rights of way, covenants, easements and restrictions of record.


8.32' sidewalk


30' bsl


30' bsl
30' bsl


5'


45.19'







1608 Burtonwood Dr.
FOLEY, AL., 36535


(251)-752-7017
WWW.BEYONDMEASURESURVEYING.COM


BEYOND MEASURE
SURVEYING


REVISION DATE PROJECT NO.:


DATED:


SCALE 1" =


DRAWN BY:


CHECKED BY:


BEY
O


N
D


 M


EAS UR E  SU
R


V
E


Y
ING


90'


251 Newport Parkway


Plasmine Technology Inc


Property Boundary Survey


Bay Minette, AL 36507


11/7/2023


JRH


JRH


CG_SETTIN GS


Property Boundary Survey
FOR: Plasmine Technology, Inc.


The Basis of Bearings for this survey is Alabama State Plane Grid (West Zone).


The centerlines and fence lines as depicted on this plat are shown
graphically as straight lines between random locations as measured.
These lines may actually meander between these end points


                      LEGEND


E E E


= REBAR FOUND(1/2" cap illegible)


= IRON PIPE FOUND
= STEEL POST FOUND


= SURVEY POINT, NO MONUMENT
= MEASURED DIMENSIONM
= RECORD DIMENSIONR


= CALCULATED DIMENSIONC
                      = FENCE LINE FOUND
                      = APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE
                      = APPARENT RIGHT-OF-WAY


BMS 40196-S flush)


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:
I, Reese Harpel, a licensed surveyor in the State of Alabama, hereby
state that the attached is a correct map or plat for property situated
in Baldwin County, Alabama and further state that this survey has
been completed in accordance with the requirements of the
Standards of Practice for Surveying in the State of Alabama, this
7th day of November, 2023.


____________________________
Reese Harpel
AL PLS#40196-S


No.
40196-S


STATE OF


J
A


M
E


S  R .  HAR
P


E
L


R


EG I S T ERED


AMABALA


R


OYEVRUS DN


A
L


Relative Error of Closure
Suburban
1'/7,500' & 20" X sq.root of # of angles


No.
40196-S


STATE OF


J
A


M
E


S  R .  HAR
P


E
L


R


EG I S T ERED


AMABALA


R


OYEVRUS DN


A
L


Site Data:
Zoning - City of Bay Minette M2 (General Industrial District)
Site Area -
Building Setbacks


Front - 30'
Rear - 0'
Side -0'


Property is located within a Zone "X" Area of minimal Flood Hazard as
shown on FEMA maps for the City of Bay Minette Baldwin County, AL
Community#010004, Map#01003CO294M, effective date 4/19/2019


251 Newport Parkway
Bay Minette AL, 36507
Parcel#05-23-02-10-3-000-029.000
PIN 35534
Current Title Holder - Plasmine Technology, Inc
3298 Summit Blvd. Pensacola FL, 32503


Additions or deletions to survey drawings by any other person(s)
than the signing party or parties is prohibited without written consent
of the signing party or parties.


Surveyor's Notes:
- Approval of all applicable Federal, State and Local
Agencies, including all MS4, Storm Water runoff,
Wetland delineation, Special Flood Hazard areas shall
be required prior to the issuance of a Land
Disturbance Permit
- All Survey work for Plasmine tract has been
performed without the benefit of an up to date Title
Search, Title Committment, Abstract or other
documentation provided by client. There may be
recorded or unrecorded documentation or items which
would normally appear as exceptions in a Title
Commitment Policy which may have a direct effect
upon the findings of this survey
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.461, 4/12/1947
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.453, 6/20/1947
- See Easement to Alabama Power Company Book
120, Pg.457, 6/20/1947
- See CSX Valuation Map V17857 Sta 0+00 - Sta
54+98, 6/30/1917


North Baldwin Utilities
Instr#1206208, 11/4/2009


Plasmine Technology, Inc.
Instr#799995, 4/5/2004


Parcel 1


258.17'(M)
258.15'(PS)


EAST 258'(R)


91
4.


92
'(M


)


91
5 .


24
'(M


)


257.46'(M)


21
6.


33
'(M


)


275.90'(M)


91
4.


90
' (P


S
)


91
5'


(R
)


257.46'(PS)
WEST 258'(R)


21
6.


33
'(P


S
)


56.88'(M)


866.86'(M)
863.69'(PS)
867.50'(R)


57.00'(R)


11
8 6


.8
9'


275.90'(PS)
275.00'(R)


11
31


. 2
5'


(M
)


12
71


.0
0 '


(R
)


North Baldwin Utilities
Instrument#1240316
Commence at the Southeast Corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, T2S, R3E, thence run
North a distance of 25 feet along the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter; thence run West a
distance of 1,190 feet along a line parallel to and north of the South Boundary of said Southwest
Quarter to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Thence run North a distance of 240 feet, more or less,
along a line west of and parallel to the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point; thence
run West a distance of 260 feet, more or less, along a line parallel to and north of the South
Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point; thence run South a distance of 240 feet, more or
less, along a line west of and parallel to the East Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point;
thence run East a distance of 260 feet, more or less, along a line parallel to and north of the South
Boundary of said Southwest Quarter to a point, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING.


PARCEL l
From the Southeast Corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East, Baldwin County, Alabama;
run thence West along South line of said Section 10, 1429 feet to a point; thence North 43 feet to an iron marker, said point being
the Southeast Comer of Parcel No. 2, as recorded in Deed Book 52, pages 129-130 of the Probate Record; from said point run


therefrom a triangular portion of 30 foot roadway easement over and across extreme Southeast Comer of above described
property.


PARCEL2
From the Southwest Corner of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East; run South 89"23'30" East, 63.00 feet; thence run


Being the same property conveyed to James Graham Brown Foundation, Inc., a Kentucky Corporation, to Reichhold Chemicals,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation by deed dated February 27, 1974 and recorded March l, 1974 in Deed Book 458, page 710, Probate
Court Records of Baldwin County, Alabama.


PARCEL3
Beginning at a point 63 feet East and l00 feet North of the Southwest corner of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East;
thence due East 867 feet to a point; thence due North 1185 feet to a point on the South line of the right-of-way of the Main Line of
the Louisville & Nashville Railroad Co.; thence Westerly and Southerly along the said line of right-of-way of the Main Line of the
said Louisville & Nashville Railroad Company and the East line of the right-of-way of the Bay Minette &. Fort Morgan Railroad
1241 feet to the place of beginning.


PARCEL 4
Commencing at a point 63 feet East and 100 feet North of the South Corner of Section l0, thence due East 867 feet, which is the
Point of Beginning for this parcel; run thence due South 57 feet; thence due East 275 feet; thence due North 1271 feet to a point;
thence in a Southwester1y direction and on a line parallel with the South line of the right-of-way of the Main Line of the
Louisville & Nashville Railroad Company to a point directly North of the Point of Beginning; thence South 1108 feet along the
East line of Parcel No. 3 to the Point of Beginning.
Being the same property conveyed by Tenneco Chemicals, Inc., to Reichhold Chemicals, Inc., by deed dated July 31, 1973 and
recorded August 3, 1973 in Deed Book 448, page 971, Probate Court Records of Baldwin County Alabama, LESS AND
EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING:
From the Southwest Comer of Section 10, Township 2 South, Range 3 East, run South 89"23 '20" East, 63.00 feet; thence run
North 00
57.00 feet to a point; 


Also described as:


2639.11'Southwest corner Section
10-T2S-R3E, Baldwin County,
Alabama (record location)


WEST 1429'(R)
1433.31'(C)


43.00'(C)
43'(R)


162.97'(R)


155.68'(R)
133.80'(R)


145.22'(R)
Parcel 2


N
O


R
T


H
 1


18
5'


(R
)


Parcel 3


Parcel 4


11
31


'(R
)


140'(R)


151.86'(R)


EXCEPTION


120.17'(R)


C
1


Curve Radius Length Delta Chord Chord Bear.


C2


C
2


1328.86' 1116.92' 1084.37'


297.35'(M)


297.19'(R)


30' roadway easement shown
on Hutchinson, Moore &
Rauch survey. No recording
of easement found


1


1 paved entrance currently used by
others. Depicted on 2001 survey by
Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch. No
easement found in favor of others.


6.76'


19' 19'


6.09'


9'


no evidence of possession


Newport Parkway (50' row)


P.O.B.
"also described as"


438.03'(PS)


100.00'(PS)
Area included in
Instr#7999995


312.73'(R
)


50
'


50
'


424.50'(M
)


100.00'(M)


303.21'(M
)


Wooded


Wooded


Wooded


Improvements shown on
previous survey by
Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch
LLC 6/28/2001


Newport Parkway (50' row)


424.50'(V
al M


ap)


15
0'


50'


2


2 concrete monument
found 3.14' East of
corner


121.94'(M)


POS


50'


Curve Radius Tangent Length Delta Degree Chord Chord Bear.


C1 1225.12' 351.51' 684.63' 675.75'


POS


3


4


3


4


previous survey
corner 9.5' West
on line


previous survey
corner 9.5' West
on line


Record


1.85'


Southeast corner, Southwest
Quarter, Section 10-2S-3E,
Baldwin County, Alabama


50
'


257.50'(M)


20
8.


01
'


20
3.


6 0
'


Current owner - North Baldwin Utilities
Instr#1240316, 7/1/2010
Title Commitment No.23-001558, 9/17/2023


WEST 1190'(R)


WEST 260'(R)


1175.72'(M)


5


5


4' board fence4' board fence


G


G


C
S


S
W


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


di
r t


 r
oa


d
no


 e
vi


de
nc


e 
of


 p
os


se
ss


io
n


7' chain link fence


7' chain link fence


7'
 c


ha
in


 li
nk


 f
en


ce


5' chain link fence


chain link fence


chain lin
k fence


(local paved)


paved entrance


22.30'


water


water


Plasmine Technology, Inc
Instrument#799995


= ADJACENT DEED DIMENSIONAD


Bay Minette Industrial
Development Board and
the City of Bay Minette,
Alabama
RP 71, Pg.1974, 6/25/1980


EAST 500'(AD)


297.08'(AD)


Bay Minette Industrial
Development Board and
the City of Bay Minette,
Alabama
RP 71, Pg.1974, 6/25/1980


C
SX


 R
A


IL
W


A
Y


CSX RAILWAY


di
rt


 r
oa


d


(local paved)


Measured


                      = PARCEL LINES
                      = AERIAL UTILITY LINES
                      = BOUNDARY LINES


                      = BUILDING SETBACK LINES


P.O.B.
Surveyed Premises
"Plasmine"


P.O.B.
Surveyed Premises "North
Baldwin Utilities"


Surveyed Premises
Plasmine Technology Inc


Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section Ten (10), Township Two (2) South, Range Three (3) East, Baldwin County, Alabama, more particularly described as
follows: Beginning at a steel corner post 63.00 feet South 89 Degrees 23 Minutes 30 Seconds East and 100.00 feet North 00 Degrees 34 Minutes 40 Seconds East of the
Southwest corner of said Southwest Quarter; THENCE North 09 Degrees 03 Minutes 26 Seconds East along the Easterly right of way of the CSX railway 121.94 feet to a


the Southeast and having an arc length of 684.63 feet and a radius of 1225.12 feet, and being subtended by a chord with a distance of 675.75 feet and a bearing of North
24 Degrees 19 Minutes 48 Seconds East to a BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said right of way North 60 Degrees 12 Minutes 16 Seconds East 424.50 feet to a
BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said right of way North 29 Degrees 47 Minutes 44 Seconds West 100.00 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE continuing along said
right of way North 60 Degrees 12 Minutes 16 Seconds East 303.21 feet to a steel corner post; THENCE leaving said right of way and running South 67 Degrees 13


pipe; THENCE South 00 Degrees 36 Minutes 14 Seconds West 216.33 feet to a BMS rebar on the Northerly right of way of Newport Parkway; THENCE along said
Northerly right of way North 89 Degrees 28 Minutes 30 Seconds West 275.90 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE North 00 Degrees 28 Minutes 32 Seconds East 56.88 feet to


beginning, containing 28.731 acres, more or less.
Together with and subject to all rights of way, covenants, easements and restrictions of record.


Surveyed Premises
North Baldwin Utilities


Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section Ten (10), Township Two (2) South, Range
Three (3) East, Baldwin County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a


way of Newport Parkway, 1175.72 feet South 89 Degrees 54 Minutes 11 Seconds West and 45.19 feet


Southwest Quarter;  THENCE South 89 Degrees 36 Minutes 15 Seconds West along said Northerly right
of way, 257.50 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE leaving said Northerly right of way and running


South 89 Degrees 24 Minutes 55 Seconds East 257.46 feet to a BMS rebar; THENCE South 00 Degrees
36 Minutes 14 Seconds West 203.60 feet to the place of beginning, containing 1.216 acres, more or less.


Together with and subject to all rights of way, covenants, easements and restrictions of record.


8.32' sidewalk


30' bsl


30' bsl
30' bsl


5'


45.19'





















		Application

		SP-24002  Site Map

		Project

		Aerial

		Certified Boundary Survey

		Elevations

		Drainage Narrative

		Drawing Details






 This message has originated from an External Source. Please use proper judgment and caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or responding to this email.

From: Scott Warner
To: Mike Minchew; Jessica Peed
Cc: COBM_Planning; Baldwin911 ADDRESSING
Subject: RE: COMMENTS REQUESTED: SP-24002, Plasmine Project
Date: Friday, February 9, 2024 2:09:58 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

 This message has originated from an External Source. Please use proper judgment and caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or responding to this email.

Chief,
 
If this is a problem for you all then it sounds like an address change is in order.  I do not have a contact for this facility.  Do you have one?  If so, we can try and set up a call to discuss with them the
repercussions of it.  For delivers getting USPS to update it in their database is fairly simple, and USPS gives them a year to make all the changes.  Then all the others like FedEx, UPS, and others will update over
the following few months. 
I will follow the Public Safety lead as always on whether an address should be changed and we of course per our agreement will handle the entire change and all the notifications of it after our discussion to
give them heads up as to the reasoning why.
 
Scott
 

From: Mike Minchew <MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 11:09 AM
To: Scott Warner <swarner@baldwin911.org>; Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Baldwin911 ADDRESSING <ADDRESSING@baldwin911.org>
Subject: RE: COMMENTS REQUESTED: SP-24002, Plasmine Project

 
Scott
This has been a problem for some time, we have learned that 251 Newport Parkway is Plasmine Technology and lived with it. I would imagine that it would be a total nightmare for Plasmine to change their
address due to all the shipping in and out of this plant. Maybe a phone call to them and see what they think about an address change? Just let me know if I can help out.
 
 
 

From: Scott Warner <swarner@baldwin911.org> 
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 10:41 AM
To: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Mike Minchew <MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Baldwin911 ADDRESSING <ADDRESSING@baldwin911.org>
Subject: RE: COMMENTS REQUESTED: SP-24002, Plasmine Project

 

 

The address of 251 Newport Parkway does not fit for where this facility is located in the block range.  It appears their driveway is located in the 900 block. 
 
Do we know what kind of a headache this might cause for this facility?   I’d probably want Chief Minchews thoughts on this one.
 
The road block range in the GIS was messed up in this area and it appears there are some number range skips.  I’ve cleaned it up based on current residential address along Newport Pkwy.
 
It appears this location should be addressed 925 Newport Parkway based on entrance in Green below.   Any thoughts on this Chief Minchew?
 
Scott

 

From: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Sent: Thursday, February 8, 2024 1:18 PM
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: COMMENTS REQUESTED: SP-24002, Plasmine Project

mailto:swarner@baldwin911.org
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:ADDRESSING@baldwin911.org
mailto:swarner@baldwin911.org
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:ADDRESSING@baldwin911.org
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV




1

Clair Dorough

From: COBM_Planning
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 3:50 PM
To: Melissa Hadley
Cc: Jessica Peed; Clair Dorough
Subject: FW: 23105 - Plasmine Concrete Truck Parking
Attachments: 2024-03-05 Plasmine Trailer Storage and Off Street Parking Const. Plans-signed.pdf; 

Drainage Calculations and Narrative.pdf; 2024-03-05 Plasmine Boundary Survey.pdf; 
23105-XR PARKING LAYOUT.dwg

Melissa, 
 
Please see attached files we received yesterday afternoon for the Plasmine site plan approval request, 
SP-24002, scheduled for the March 14th PC meeting.   
 
Thank you, 
 
Paula S. Bonner 
Planner Associate 
 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services Department 
301 D’Olive Street 
Bay Minette, AL 36507 
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7066 
cityofbayminetteal.gov 
Planning & Development Services Department Site 

 
 

From: Nathan Williams <Nathan.Williams@DrivenEngineering.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 12:27 PM 
To: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Subject: 23105 - Plasmine Concrete Truck Parking 
 

 

See attached for submittal documents for Plasmine Trailer Storage and Off Street Parking Planning Submittal. 
 
Thank you, 
 

Nathan Williams, PM, EI 

  This message has originated from an External Source. Please use proper judgment and caution when opening 
attachments, clicking links, or responding to this email.  



2

 

SDB, WOSB, WBENC WBE, 
AL, FL, GA, LA, MA, MS, & TX DBE Small Business Concern 
 
8005 Morris Hill Road 
Semmes, AL  36575 
(251) 649-4011 phone  
(251) 895-4200 cell 
Nathan.williams@drivenengineering.com 
www.drivenengineering.com 
 
Commit to the Lord whatever you do, and your plans will succeed.  Proverbs 16:3 

The informa on contained in this e-mail, including any accompanying documents or a achments, is from Driven Engineering, Inc., is intended only for the use of the individual or en ty named above, and is privileged and confiden al. If you are not the intended 
recipient, be aware that any disclosure, dissemina on, distribu on, copying or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please no fy Driven Engineering, Inc. immediately at (251) 649-4011. Thank you for your 
coopera on. 

 

 



1

Clair Dorough

From: Melissa Hadley <melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com>
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 10:32 AM
To: COBM_Planning; Steven W. Stewart; Rob Madison; Clair Dorough; Paula Bonner; Tammy 

S. Smith
Subject: RE: Plasmine Technologies Site Plan
Attachments: Red Line_Plasmine construction plans.pdf; Plasmine_GMC_Review Letter.pdf

Please see a ached comments on the Plasmine construc on plans. 
 

Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, AICP 
Project Manager, Engineering 

T: 251.626.2626 
C: 850.353.3330 
D: 251.380.8746 
E: melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com 

2039 Main Street 
Mailing: PO Box 1127 
Daphne, AL 36526 

Building Communities 

 
 

From: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 20, 2024 10:17 AM 
To: Steven W. Stewart <SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Melissa Hadley <melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com>; 
Rob Madison <Rob.Madison@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Clair Dorough 
<Clair.Dorough@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Paula Bonner <Paula.Bonner@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>; Tammy S. 
Smith <TammyS.Smith@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Subject: FW: Plasmine Technologies Site Plan 
 

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] DO NOT CLICK links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
 
Jessica Peed 
Planning Coordinator 
 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services Department 
301 D’Olive Street 
Bay Minette, AL 36507 

 You don't often get email from cobm_planning@cityofbayminetteal.gov. Learn why this is important  



  

March 11, 2024 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Clair Dorough 
City of Bay Minette, City Planner 
301 D’Olive St 
Bay Minette, AL 36507 
 
 
RE: PLASMINE TECHNOLOGY, SP-24002 
 SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
 
Dear Ms. Dorough: 
 
We have reviewed the civil construction documents dated March 4, 2024 for the Plasmine 
Technology property located on Newport Parkway for conformance with the Bay Minette 
subdivision regulations and zoning ordinance. In addition to the red-line markups shown on the 
attached plans, we offer the following comments that should be addressed prior to approval 
by the City: 
 
General Comments: 
 

1. A signed and sealed survey is required but was not included with the submission.  
2. A Landscape Plan is required per Article 10 of the Zoning Ordinance but was not 

included with the submission. 
3. Ownership of, or rights granted with an access easement, is required for use of the 

drive on the property to the east of the site for ingress/egress. 
 
Construction Plans Comments: 
 

4. Cover Sheet: Add flood map and flood zone information. 
5. Master Layout Sheet (sheet C-4.0):  Install 24’-wide asphalt road from the north side 

of the truck parking lot to Newport Parkway on the east side of the site.  Install stop 
sign and stop bar for south bound truck traffic at the asphalt drive – Newport Drive 
intersection. 

6. Grading and Drainage Plan (sheet C-5.0):  Add erosion protection on the south side 
of the drainage ditch along Newport Parkway at the basin discharge pipe outlet.  
Update rainfall data with current NOAA data for all storms (2-year to 100-year).  
Provide instructions or steps to be taken including the timing from the end of the 
rainfall event to the opening of the slide gate valve.         

7. Pond Detail (sheet C-6.0):  Callout slide gate locations in both plan and profile.  Add 
valve details or note for engineer to approve shop drawings. 

8. Erosion Control Plan (sheet C-9.0):  Add slit fence or sediment barrier at the basin 
side of all pipe inlets. 
 

Drainage Report Review Comments: 
 

9. Provide table for the pre-development and post-development runoff rates using the 
current NOAA rainfall data for the 2-year through the 100-year event storm. 

10. Recalculate the 25-year and 100-year basin volumes based on the current NOAA 
rainfall data. 

11. Provide the discharge velocity for the basin outlet pipe. 



 

12. Provide release rate calculations for the 2-year through the 100-year storm for the 
parking lot detention basin and the containment basins.  Limit the containment 
basins rate of discharge to pre-developed rates. 

13. Provide design that prevents groundwater contamination from the containment 
basins. 

14. Provide details and timing of mitigation in the event of contaminated water 
detection.       

 
Please let me know if further explanation or additional information are needed. Thank you. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
GOODWYN MILLS CAWOOD, LLC 
 
 
 
Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, AICP 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosures 



 
 
 

SP-24002 
Large Format Plans Submitted 

Under Separate Cover 
 
 

See Exhibit B 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF ANALYSIS 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: March 14, 2024                                                             Case Number: SD-24004 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Quinley Oaks Subdivision – Preliminary Plat 
Property Location: East side of Quinley Street, South of CSX 
Railroad/W Railroad Street 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-2-002-015.000 // 18263 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-2-002-015.001 // 359846 
Property Size: 3.23± acres 
 

Proposed Action: Preliminary Plat Approval for 11-lot subdivision 
Applicant: Timothy Brandon Bailey, PLS 
832 Artillery Range West 
Spanish Fort, AL 36527 
Property Owner:    TPQ, LLC c/o J. Myles Reed 
114 North Hoyle Ave 
Bay Minette, AL 36507

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

 The subject property, which consists of two parcels containing 3.23± acres, is located on the East side of Quinley Street and South of the 
CSX Railroad/W Railroad Street. The property is currently zoned R-3 Single Family and has 422.92 feet of frontage on Quinley Street. The 
northern property lines abut the CSX railroad and W Railroad Street, which is partially located on railroad right-of-way and private property. 
W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be public access.  Quinley Oaks is an 11-lot Major 
Subdivision with 10 of the proposed lots designated for single-family residential. Lot 1, approximately 1.5± acres, has been tentatively 
indicated for multiple duplexes, which would require an approved rezoning to allow for multi-family residential use. The development 
includes a waiver/modification request related to sidewalks as well as a proposal for 30-ft of right-of-way to be dedicated along the 
northern property lines for Lots 1-4. 

The developer has requested concurrent review of the Preliminary and Final Plat applications, however the Final Plat review and approval is 
contingent upon the approval of the Preliminary Plat.  
 

ZONING DISTRICT 

CURRENT ZONING 
6.02.04 R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District. This district is intended to provide for a higher density of single-family 
structures on smaller lots than those allowed in the R-1 and R-2 districts. Duplexes will be allowed as a special exception. 

 

DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY COMMENTS 

North Baldwin Utilities – Water, sewer and gas services available. 
Bay Minette Public Works – No comments. 
Bay Minette Police Department – No comments. 
Bay Minette Fire Department – Hydrant comments received. 

Baldwin County E-911 – Road Naming comments received.   
ALDOT – N/A  
City Engineering Consultant GMC, Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, 

AICP – Access comments received.

 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use Designation 
SD-24004 R-3 Undeveloped  Single Family 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use Designation 
North B-2 CSX Railroad, Commercial Commercial 
South R-3 Residential Single Family 
East R-3 Residential, S Day Ave, White’s Park Single Family 
West R-3 Quinley Street, Residential Single Family 



MAPPING 
  Existing Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

 

Locator  Site Map 

 
PUBLIC UTILITIES & SITE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
Public Utility Services: Water: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Gas: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Sewer: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Telephone/Internet: No service letter provided. 
 Electricity: Alabama Power (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
Transportation: Lots 5-11 front Quinley Street, a paved and City-maintained roadway with a 60-ft right-of-way. Lots 1-4 have 

access proposed from W Railroad Street, which is located partially on CSX right-of-way and partially on 
private property. W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be public 
access.  The developer proposes to dedicate 30 feet of right-of-way along the northern property line, however, 
the Zoning Ordinance and Sub Regs require a minimum 60-ft right-of-way. 

 



REVIEW STAGE 
  
SECTION 3.13 PRELIMINARY PLAT  The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to provide a basis for construction of a proposed subdivision and its 
improvements. Planning Commission approval of the Preliminary Plat is tentative and revocable. It is to be considered only as approval of the design, 
with the understanding that the Commission, City, and other officials and agencies will examine the grades of streets, the types of improvements, 
the layout of drainage and sewer and water systems, and may require changes to any engineering or construction details submitted by the Subdivider 
whenever required for the protection of the public interest. 

3.13.07.01 If approved subject to conditions, the nature of the required modifications shall be stated in the hearing and presented to the subdivider in 
writing. If necessary, the Commission may require the subdivider to submit a revised preliminary plat prior to obtaining development permits. 

3.13.07.02 If the Planning Commission disapproves the preliminary plat, the reasons for such action shall be stated in the hearing, presented to the 
subdivider in writing and documented in the records of the Planning Commission. Reference shall be made to the specific section(s) of the regulations 
with which the preliminary plat does not comply. 

3.13.07.03 Delay action on the Preliminary Plat. The Planning Commission shall act to approve or disapprove a subdivision plat within thirty (30) 
calendar days after its formal submission at a regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the applicant waives this requirement and consents 
to an extension, the Planning Commission may defer action on the plat for a period not to exceed an additional thirty (30) calendar days. If no action is 
taken within the initial 30-day time period, or if there is no action taken within the extension period, such plat shall be deemed to have been approved, 
and notification to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission on request. 

03.13.08 Approval Within Thirty Days 

The Planning Commission shall approve or disapprove a plat within thirty (30) days after the submission thereof to it, otherwise such plat shall be 
deemed to have been approved, and a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Commission on demand; provided, however, that the applicant for 
the commission’s approval may waive this requirement and consent to an extension of such period. 

03.13.09 Expression of Approval 

Planning Commission approval of the Preliminary Plat shall not be deemed as final plat approval or authorization for official recording and shall not be 
entered on the plat. In accordance with state law, Preliminary Plat approval is a tentative and revocable endorsement of a subdivision prior to the 
construction or installation of improvements. Said approval shall be authorization to begin work, to proceed with the construction of all minimum 
improvements as detailed in Article 5 Required Improvements including the grading of streets, and staking of lots, etc. 

Planning Commission approval shall not constitute the City of Bay Minette’s acceptance of any street or other public or open space displayed on the 
plat. Planning Commission approval of a Preliminary Plat is deemed an expression of approval of the layout as submitted on the preliminary plat. The 
Planning Commission files shall retain one copy of the Preliminary Plat. 

03.13.10 Effective Period 

03.13.10.01 Approval of the Preliminary Plat shall be effective for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of Planning Commission approval 
and shall thereafter expire and be considered null and void, if no development permits have been acquired for the project. The preliminary plat and any 
applicable City of Bay Minette development permits shall become void one (1) year from the issuance of the permit if no substantial building or 
construction activity has occurred. 

03.13.10.02 Prior to the expiration of the Preliminary Plat or initial development permit, a Request for Subdivision Extension of one (1) year may be 
granted by the Planning Commission for the approved preliminary plat and development permit.  

03.13.12 Limitation on Resubmission. If the Planning Commission denies a request for Preliminary Plat approval, no further subdivision applications for 
the same parcel or a portion thereof shall be accepted by the Commission within 180 days from the date of such denial, unless a new, complete 
application is submitted which clearly corrects, resolves, or mitigates all deficiencies and/or other areas of non-compliance identified as the basis of 
denial. 

WAIVERS / MODIFICATIONS REQUESTED 

The development is required to provide sidewalks in accordance with several provisions of the Sub Regs. According to  Sec. 6.01, 
the developer is responsible for all required improvements either through installation or a financial guarantee of performance:  

The subdivider/developer shall be responsible for the provision of all required improvements to the subdivision/development. This 
may be accomplished by either the full installation of all required improvements by the developer at the time the Final Plat is to be 
submitted to the Planning Commission, or by the provision of a financial guarantee of performance. 

The applicant has requested “to contribute to City sidewalk fund instead of constructing sidewalks.” The Planning Commission has the 
authority to modify the sidewalk requirements using the guidelines in Sec 4.17.08, however that section is related more to the locational 
requirements and not applicable in relation to the applicant’s request.  The Subdivision Regulations do not include provisions that 
specifically allow or prohibit payment in lieu of construction.  



The City Administrator stated that if there is a decision by Planning 
Commission to accept payment in place of sidewalk construction, the 
payment would be deposited into the capital fund and held on deposit 
for Sidewalk Construction/Improvements. The developer would be 
required to submit payment in an amount equal to the cost of installing 
the sidewalks and fees encountered during execution of improvements. 
As no construction plans or specifications were submitted with the 
application, any design costs associated with the sidewalk construction 
would also be included.  

The Landscape Plan also notes that the “City must relocate the ditch 
along Quinley Street to construct sidewalk.” This request will not be 
permitted as the City cannot expend public funds in aid of private 
individuals or corporations. All costs associated with the construction of the required sidewalks, including the relocation or enclosure 
of the existing ditch, must be borne by the developer whether the developer constructs the sidewalks or the Commission allows a 
payment in lieu of construction.  

SECTION 4.17 SIDEWALKS 

4.17.02 Whenever land to be subdivided embraces or abuts an existing public street without sidewalks, such facilities must be provided by the 
Subdivider along the applicable portion of the existing street. 

4.17.03 Sidewalks, when required or provided, must be at least five (5) feet wide. In subdivision involving nonresidential and mixed-uses (other 
than industrial), sidewalks must be at least eight (8) feet wide. All sidewalks shall be constructed of reinforced concrete that has a minimum 
twenty-eight (28)-day compressive strength of 3,000 psi. 

4.17.04 All major subdivisions shall provide for sidewalks adjacent to all new lots. 

4.17.06 Sidewalks shall connect to any adjacent sidewalks and/or bike paths and shall be interconnected within said development to allow for 
sufficient pedestrian access. Sidewalks that are located adjacent to common areas or otherwise not adjacent to individual lots shall be constructed 
by the developer prior to final plat approval. 

4.17.07 Sidewalks must be in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), including provision of pedestrian 
ramps at street intersections. 

4.17.08.05 A permanently dedicated greenway, walking trail, pedestrian passage or similar pedestrian facility may be required as an alternative 
to or in addition to sidewalks to provide pedestrian access to nearby commercial centers, schools, parks or places of assembly. In such cases, 
the pedestrian facility should be located so as to be accessible to the greatest number of users within the proposed development.  

SECTION 5.02 PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE FACILITIES 

5.02.01 All major subdivisions shall provide for sidewalks adjacent to all new lots. 

5.02.04 Sidewalks shall connect to any sidewalks and/or bike paths within a reasonable distance and shall be interconnected within said 
development to allow for sufficient pedestrian access. 

5.02.05 Sidewalks shall be constructed by the developer prior to final plat approval. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS / RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal meets the minimum Lot Area, Width and Density standards for the R-3 zoning district as well as the Landscape Provisions of 
the Zoning Ordinance. It does not meet the access standards as required by Sec 7.9.1 (listed below). As submitted, the proposed 
subdivision does not meet the provisions of the Subdivision Regulations listed below, either due to noncompliance or insufficient 
information submitted to allow a complete review. Letters of availability were submitted but no plans, specifications or narratives were 
submitted for drainage/stormwater management, sewer facility improvements, water facility improvements or sidewalk construction as 
required. The proposal’s primary deficiency is related to transportation/access to Lots 1-4. Those lots have access proposed from W 
Railroad Street, which is located partially on CSX right-of-way and partially on private property. Although there are residential and 
commercial uses existing, W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be a public roadway. The 
City’s right-of-way ends at the northeastern corner of the subject property and only extends 30 feet south of the railroad right-of-way. City 
staff has been working with CSX to determine if any maintenance agreement can be reached, but no determination has been received. Our 
Engineering Consultant had comments related to the access, but based on legal counsel, “the CSX property does not belong to the 



developer and/or the City and it is not the 
City’s responsibility to purchase or obtain the 
ROW for a private developer. That issue alone 
precludes standard road widths and the ability 
for the developer or the City to ever maintain 
the property.” Counsel also determined that a 
prescriptive right-of-way is not an option in the 
railroad right-of-way. The developer had 
proposed to dedicate 30 feet of right-of-way 
along the northern property line, however, the 
Zoning Ordinance and Sub Regs require a 
minimum 60-ft right-of-way. If the 60-ft right-
of-way is dedicated, a new roadway 
constructed to City standards would be 
required at the developer’s expense in order to 
be compliant with the Zoning Ordinance 
Subdivision Regulations.   
Based on the information submitted by the 
applicant, City Staff, Legal input and the 
analysis above, staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission 
DENY Case SD-24004, Quinley Oaks 
Preliminary Plat as submitted.  

 



DEFICIENCIES AS NOTED BY STAFF 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE 

7.9 Access to Public Streets. Access to public streets shall be maintained in accordance with the following requirements: 

7.9.1 Each principal use shall be placed on a lot or parcel which provides frontage on a public or private street having a right-of-way of not less than 
sixty (60) feet, except where existing public rights-of-way are less than 60 feet. 

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

4.03.03 Each lot must front on an existing or proposed street having a right-of-way at least 50 feet wide. 

4.04.09 Proposed new streets must extend existing streets or their projections at the same or greater width, but in no case less than the minimum 
required width, unless variations are deemed necessary by the Commission for reasons of topography or other design constraints. 

4.06.01 The street layout must provide for access to the existing street network and continuation and connection of streets between adjacent properties 
where necessary for the convenient movement and circulation of traffic, effective police and fire protection, access by public service vehicles, and 
efficient provision of utilities; and in accordance with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
SECTION 4.13 FRONTAGE ON IMPROVED STREETS 
4.13.01 No subdivision shall be approved unless the area to be subdivided shall have frontage on, and access from an existing hard surface State, 
County, or City Road or highway; or 
 
4.13.02 A hard surface street upon a plat approved by the Planning Commission and recorded in the Baldwin County Probate Judge's Office. Such 
street or highway must be suitably improved as required by rules, regulations, specifications, or orders, or be secured by an improvement guarantee 
required under these subdivision regulations, with the width and right-of- way required by these subdivision regulations. 
SECTION 4.16 STREET DESIGN STANDARDS 
4.16.01 Proposed streets must be designed in accordance with the standards in Table 4-4, all applicable City Specifications and review of the City 
Engineer. 
 
4.16.03.01 Street Grades 

1. Streets must be graded and improved 
in accordance with City Specifications and 
must be approved as to design and 
specifications by the City Engineer and the 
Commission in accordance with the 
construction plans required to be 
submitted prior to Preliminary Plat 
Approval. 

 
SECTION 4.18 ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
The purposes of this section are to promote the 
overall safety of motorists, bicyclists, and 
pedestrians; to reduce interference with 
through traffic by other vehicles entering, 
leaving, and crossing streets; to assure safe 
access to and from streets by emergency 
vehicles; and to preserve the traffic capacity of 
streets. See illustrations following. 

 
4.18.01 General Conditions and Requirements. 
The location and design of vehicular accesses 
from existing or proposed streets must be 
specified in an Access Plan submitted as part 
of the Preliminary Plat. No curbs or rights-of-way may be cut, paved, or otherwise altered until a permit for the access has been secured from the City 
and/or any other governmental agency owning or controlling the street right-of-way. 
 
SECTION 4.20 DRAINAGE AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 



4.20.01 General Design Criteria. All drainage structures and facilities shall be designed and sized to meet the runoff of the drainage area to be served 
and in accordance with the City’s Drainage and Stormwater Management Standards. 
 
4.20.02 A drainage plan must be prepared by the Subdivision Engineer, which takes into consideration the ultimate or saturated development of the 
tributary area in which the proposed subdivision is located. Adequate provisions must be made to provide drainage easements needed within the 
subdivision, taking into consideration the saturated development of the tributary area. Post-development release rates may not exceed pre-development 
rates for a 2, 5, 10-, 25-, 50- and 100-year event. In no case may discharge from a drainage basin exceed the hydraulic capabilities of the initial 
receiving downstream drainage structures. The Commission may withhold approval of the subdivision until provision has been made for the necessary 
downstream improvement. 
 
4.20.03 Storm and sanitary sewer plans must be developed prior to other utility plans. Engineering considerations must give preferential treatment to 
gravity flow improvements over other utilities and improvements. Off-premise drainage easements and improvements may be required to handle the 
runoff of subdivisions into a natural drainage channel. Under no condition may any storm drainage be emptied into or become a part of any sanitary 
sewer system and vice versa. 
 
4.20.04 No subdivision or part thereof may shed storm runoff, either as surface runoff or an outfall from storm sewer structures, onto any adjacent land 
unless the runoff is contained within an existing drainage easement, swale, structure or right-of-way and provided further, that the existing drainage 
easement, ditch, structure or right-of-way provides outfall to an established drainage channel, as approved by the City Planner. 
 
SECTION 5.03 SANITARY SEWERAGE FACILITIES 
5.03.01 Sanitary sewers must be provided where a public sanitary sewer system is reasonably accessible as determined by the Commission and the 
public Sewer Authority responsible for the maintenance of the sanitary sewer system. The developer shall install a sanitary sewer system which meets 
the requirements of the Sewer Authority and shall connect to such system at their expense. 
 
5.03.03 When sanitary sewer facilities are required, the Subdivider must install the sanitary sewer facilities in a manner prescribed by the City Engineer 
and/or the Sewer Authority. All plans and specifications must be prepared by a registered engineer and submitted for approval at the time of submission 
of the preliminary plat. 
 
SECTION 5.04 WATER FACILITIES 
5.04.03 The location of all fire hydrants and all water supply improvements must be shown on the preliminary plat, and the cost of installation must be 
included in the performance bond, if applicable. 
 
SECTION 5.06 STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
5.06.01 All subdivisions shall be provided with adequate storm drainage facilities. Any areas subject to periodic flooding caused by poor drainage 
facilities will not be approved for a development by the Planning Commission unless the developer or subdivider makes necessary provisions to 
eliminate such flooding. 
 
5.06.02 In addition to the requirements herein, the Drainage and Stormwater Management Standards of the City of Bay Minette Zoning Ordinance shall 
also apply to all subdivisions. 
 
5.06.03 A complete drainage plan and contour map showing the criteria outlined in Appendix A Submittal Requirements, shall be submitted along with 
the profile grades and typical roadway section for approval. 
 
5.06.05 All off project drainage, draining onto a subdivision or other development, shall be shown on contour maps and/or construction plans showing 
the areas in acres that the subdivision or development will have to accommodate. 
 
5.06.07 Where the subdivider or developer has open ditches, a maximum of 3:1 front slopes and flat bottom ditch is required; the width of the ditch 
shall be determined by the required flows and the existing conditions and be approved by the City Engineer and Superintendent of Streets and 
Sanitation. V-bottom ditches or other special designs will be permitted in special cases. Resulting 2-year peak flow rates in the natural system or open 
ditch drainage shall be less than the critical rates that would cause excessive channel scour. 
 
5.06.10 Every drainage structure must be large enough to accommodate potential runoff from its entire upstream drainage area, whether inside or 
outside the planned subdivision. The Subdivision Engineer must determine the size of the facility based on City Specifications assuming conditions of 
the maximum potential development permitted by the Zoning Ordinance or as provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. Drainage structures must be 
designed in to a standard acceptable to the City Engineer. 
 
5.06.11 Storm drainage facilities must be installed where driveways connect with streets, must be specified in the Preliminary Plat. Size, location and 
width must be approved by the City Engineer. 

 



STANDARDS OF APPROVAL / PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 

SECTION 3.05 STANDARDS OF APPROVAL 
The Planning Commission shall not approve the subdivision of land if the Commission makes a finding that such land is not suitable 
for platting and development as proposed, due to any of the following: 
 
3.05.01 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with these Regulations; 
 
3.05.02 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance and/or any other plan or 
program for the physical development of the City including but not limited to a Master Street Plan, a Transportation Plan, a Parks 
Plan, a Bicycle Plan, a Pedestrian Plan, or a Capital Improvements Program, where applicable; 
 
3.05.03 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with other applicable Federal, State or County laws and regulations; or 
 
3.05.04 Notwithstanding that the proposed subdivision may satisfy the technical, objective provisions of these Regulations, the 
Commission has discretion to deny a subdivision if there is any articulable, rational basis for a determination that the proposed 
subdivision otherwise endangers the health, safety, or welfare of persons or property. 

 
The applicant has requested concurrent review of the Preliminary and Final Plat applications, however the Final Plat review and approval is 
contingent upon the approval of the Preliminary Plat. For Preliminary Plat applications, the Planning Commission makes the final decision 
based on the Standards of Approval and has the option to: 

 
• Approve the Preliminary Plat as presented 
• Approve the Preliminary Plat with modifications, stating the nature of the required modifications 
• Deny the Preliminary Plat, reasons for denial and referencing the specific section(s) with which the plat does not comply  
• Delay action on the Preliminary Plat due to a lack of information 

 

 

03.13.12 Limitation on Resubmission 

If the Planning Commission denies a request for Preliminary Plat approval, no further subdivision applications for the same parcel or a portion thereof 
shall be accepted by the Commission within 180 days from the date of such denial, unless a new, complete application is submitted which clearly 
corrects, resolves, or mitigates all deficiencies and/or other areas of non-compliance identified as the basis of denial. 

 

 

 

























From: Jessica Peed
Cc: COBM_Planning
Bcc: AL Tolbert; ALDOT; ALDOT1; Brandon Bias; Jason Padgett; Jeff Donald; Lee Walters; Melissa Hadley; Mike Minchew; Murray Stewart;

Samantha Roberts; Scott Warner; Steven W. Stewart
Subject: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
Date: Friday, February 2, 2024 3:30:00 PM
Attachments: SD-24004 Quinley Oaks Subdivision.pdf

image001.png
image002.png

Attached is the application and site plan for the proposed 11-lot subdivision located at the corner of Quinley St and W
Railroad St, PIN’s 18263 & 359846 - properties are outlined in blue below for location reference.
 
Please review the submitted materials and let me know if you have any questions, comments or concerns with the proposed
project.
 

 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:AL.Tolbert@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:"smithmi@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:"aaronb@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:brandon.bias@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:jpadgett@nbumail.com
mailto:JDonald@NBUMAIL.COM
mailto:lee.walters@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Murray.Stewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:sroberts@baldwin911.org
mailto:swarner@baldwin911.org
mailto:SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/









		SD-24004 Application Materials 1

		Quinley Oaks Plat Submitted 12-28-2023







From: Samantha Roberts
To: Jessica Peed; Scott Warner
Cc: COBM_Planning
Subject: RE: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
Date: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 12:35:39 PM
Attachments: image003.png

image005.png
image006.png
image001.png
image002.png

 This message has originated from an External Source. Please use proper judgment and caution when opening attachments,
clicking links, or responding to this email.

The only issue I see is the one of the existing road names.  The plat has it labeled as Byrne Ln N but we have W
Railroad St.
 

 

mailto:sroberts@baldwin911.org
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=usere241ab28
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV







 

Samantha Roberts
Addressing Specialist
GIS/Addressing
911 Telecommunicator Circle
Robertsdale, AL  36567
( 251-947-3911 ext 5159
www.baldwin911.org
 

Like and Follow us:    

 
From: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 3:31 PM
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
 
Attached is the application and site plan for the proposed 11-lot subdivision located at the corner of Quinley St and W
Railroad St, PIN’s 18263 & 359846 - properties are outlined in blue below for location reference.
 

http://www.baldwin911.org/
https://www.facebook.com/baldwincounty911/


From: Steven W. Stewart
To: Jessica Peed
Subject: RE: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
Date: Monday, February 5, 2024 8:18:12 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

Fire hydrants are not currently in this area, the developer will have to provide.
 

From: Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV> 
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 3:31 PM
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
 
Attached is the application and site plan for the proposed 11-lot subdivision located at the corner of Quinley St and W
Railroad St, PIN’s 18263 & 359846 - properties are outlined in blue below for location reference.
 
Please review the submitted materials and let me know if you have any questions, comments or concerns with the proposed
project.
 

 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov

mailto:SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/




From: Jason Padgett
To: Jessica Peed
Subject: Re: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
Date: Friday, February 2, 2024 6:29:53 PM

All is good with us. We have water, sewer and gas along all sides.

Jason M. Padgett
General Manager/CEO
North Baldwin Utilities

This communication, including attachments, is for the exclusive use of the addressee and may contain proprietary,
confidential or privileged information.  If you are not the intended recipient, any use, copying,  disclosure,
discrimination or distribution is strictly prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender
immediately by return email and delete this communications and destroy all copies.

> On Feb 2, 2024, at 3:30 PM, Jessica Peed <Jessica.Peed@cityofbayminetteal.gov> wrote:
>
> Attached is the application and site plan for the proposed 11-lot subdivision located at the corner of Quinley St
and W Railroad St, PIN’s 18263 & 359846 - properties are outlined in blue below for location reference.
>
> Please review the submitted materials and let me know if you have any questions, comments or concerns with the
proposed project.
>
> [cid:image002.png@01DA55EC.765389C0]
>
> Jessica Peed
> Planning Coordinator
>
> City of Bay Minette
> Planning & Development Services Department
> 301 D’Olive Street
> Bay Minette, AL 36507
> (251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
> cityofbayminetteal.gov<https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/>
> Planning & Development Services Department Site<https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-
development/>
> [cid:image001.png@01DA55E9.72FC9DF0]
>
>

mailto:JPadgett@NBUMAIL.COM
mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/








From: Jessica Peed
Cc: COBM_Planning
Bcc: AL Tolbert; ALDOT; ALDOT1; Brandon Bias; Jason Padgett; Jeff Donald; Lee Walters; Melissa Hadley; Mike Minchew; Murray Stewart;

Samantha Roberts; Scott Warner; Steven W. Stewart
Subject: RE: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
Date: Thursday, February 8, 2024 12:40:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
Utility Letters.pdf
Landscape plan.pdf
Revised Final.pdf
Revised Prelim.pdf

Good afternoon,
 
Please see the attachments as there have been some updates and revisions to the previous submittals for the Quinley Oaks
Subdivision project. Please advise if you have any questions, concerns or comments. If you do not have any questions or
concerns, please respond with “no comment”.
 
Thank you,
 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

 
 
From: Jessica Peed 
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 3:31 PM
Cc: COBM_Planning <COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV>
Subject: Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
 
Attached is the application and site plan for the proposed 11-lot subdivision located at the corner of Quinley St and W
Railroad St, PIN’s 18263 & 359846 - properties are outlined in blue below for location reference.
 
Please review the submitted materials and let me know if you have any questions, comments or concerns with the proposed
project.
 

mailto:Jessica.Peed@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:COBM_Planning@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:AL.Tolbert@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:"smithmi@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:"aaronb@dot.state.al.us"
mailto:brandon.bias@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:jpadgett@nbumail.com
mailto:JDonald@NBUMAIL.COM
mailto:lee.walters@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:melissa.hadley@gmcnetwork.com
mailto:MMINCHEW@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:Murray.Stewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
mailto:sroberts@baldwin911.org
mailto:swarner@baldwin911.org
mailto:SWStewart@CITYOFBAYMINETTEAL.GOV
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/




























 
Jessica Peed
Planning Coordinator
 

City of Bay Minette
Planning & Development Services Department
301 D’Olive Street
Bay Minette, AL 36507
(251) 580-1650, Ext. 7065
cityofbayminetteal.gov
Planning & Development Services Department Site

 
 

https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/
https://cityofbayminetteal.gov/departments/planning-and-development/


 
 
 

SD-24004 – Preliminary Plat 
Large Format Plans Submitted 

Under Separate Cover 
 
 

See Exhibit C 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF ANALYSIS 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: March 14, 2024                                                             Case Number: SD-24004 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Quinley Oaks Subdivision – Final Plat 
Property Location: East side of Quinley Street, South of CSX 
Railroad/W Railroad Street 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-2-002-015.000 // 18263 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-23-05-16-2-002-015.001 // 359846 
Property Size: 3.23± acres 
 

Proposed Action: Final Plat Approval for 11-lot subdivision 
Applicant: Timothy Brandon Bailey, PLS 
832 Artillery Range West 
Spanish Fort, AL 36527 
Property Owner:    TPQ, LLC c/o J. Myles Reed 
114 North Hoyle Ave 
Bay Minette, AL 36507

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

 The subject property, which consists of two parcels containing 3.23± acres, is located on the East side of Quinley Street and South of the 
CSX Railroad/W Railroad Street. The property is currently zoned R-3 Single Family and has 422.92 feet of frontage on Quinley Street. The 
northern property lines abut the CSX railroad and W Railroad Street, which is partially located on railroad right-of-way and private property. 
W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be public access.  Quinley Oaks is an 11-lot Major 
Subdivision with 10 of the proposed lots designated for single-family residential. Lot 1, approximately 1.5± acres, has been tentatively 
indicated for multiple duplexes, which would require an approved rezoning to allow for multi-family residential use. The development 
includes a waiver/modification request related to sidewalks as well as a proposal for 30-ft of right-of-way to be dedicated along the 
northern property lines for Lots 1-4. 

The developer has requested concurrent review of the Preliminary and Final Plat applications, however the Final Plat review and approval is 
contingent upon the approval of the Preliminary Plat.  
 

ZONING DISTRICT 

CURRENT ZONING 
6.02.04 R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District. This district is intended to provide for a higher density of single-family 
structures on smaller lots than those allowed in the R-1 and R-2 districts. Duplexes will be allowed as a special exception. 

 

DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY COMMENTS 

North Baldwin Utilities – Water, sewer and gas services available. 
Bay Minette Public Works – No comments. 
Bay Minette Police Department – No comments. 
Bay Minette Fire Department – Hydrant comments received. 

Baldwin County E-911 – Road Naming comments received.   
ALDOT – N/A  
City Engineering Consultant GMC, Melissa A. Hadley, PhD, RLA, 

AICP – Access comments received.

 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use Designation 
SD-24004 R-3 Undeveloped  Single Family 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use Future Land Use Designation 
North B-2 CSX Railroad, Commercial Commercial 
South R-3 Residential Single Family 
East R-3 Residential, S Day Ave, White’s Park Single Family 
West R-3 Quinley Street, Residential Single Family 



MAPPING 
  Existing Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

 

Locator  Site Map 

 
PUBLIC UTILITIES & SITE CONSIDERATIONS 

 
Public Utility Services: Water: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Gas: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Sewer: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
 Telephone/Internet: No service letter provided. 
 Electricity: Alabama Power (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
Transportation: Lots 5-11 front Quinley Street, a paved and City-maintained roadway with a 60-ft right-of-way. Lots 1-4 have 

access proposed from W Railroad Street, which is located partially on CSX right-of-way and partially on 
private property. W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be public 
access.  The developer proposes to dedicate 30 feet of right-of-way along the northern property line, however, 
the Zoning Ordinance and Sub Regs require a minimum 60-ft right-of-way. 

 
 



REVIEW STAGE 
  

SECTION 3.16 FINAL PLAT 

The purpose of the Final Plat is to provide an accurate record of street and property lines and other elements being established on the land and the 
conditions of their use. The Final Plat must conform substantially to the approved Preliminary Plat. All inspections and testing must be completed 
and approved by the Subdivision Official prior to the Final Plat being placed on the agenda for Commission action. A Final Plat may include only that 
portion of the approved Preliminary Plat, which the Subdivider proposes to record and develop at that time. If it is submitted in portions, each portion 
must individually conform to all requirements of these Regulations. 

No lot may be sold, or utilities extended to, or connected with, any subdivision of land, as defined herein until the Final Plat has been approved by 
the Planning Commission. 

3.16.01 Final approval will be considered only for subdivisions or portions of subdivisions that meet the requirements of 3.14 Construction of 
Improvements. Or, in the case of Minor Subdivisions which do not involve any new street or drainage improvements, the extension of public facilities, 
nor the creation of any public improvements, after the required Pre-Application Conference. If qualified, those subdividers shall submit a complete 
application for Final Plat to the Planning and Development Services Department prior to a regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting and in 
accordance with the established Meeting and Application Deadline Schedule. 

3.16.04.01 The subdivider shall be responsible for the full installation of all required minimum improvements in the proposed subdivision prior to the 
submission of a final plat application to the Planning Commission. In lieu of full installation of minimum improvements, after no less than ninety percent 
(90%) of the minimum improvements have been installed, a developer may issue a financial guarantee with surety to the City ensuring that the 
remaining minimum improvements shall be completed. 

3.16.04.02 One (1) or more of the following may be accepted as a financial guarantee with surety payable to the City of Bay Minette: 

1. a letter of credit approved by the City Administrator and City Attorney, or 
2. a cash deposit to be held by the City, or 
3. a certified check from an Alabama lending institution in an amount not to exceed one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the cost of the 
required improvements remaining. 

3.16.04.03 A cost estimate for any remaining civil improvements shall be certified and submitted by the design engineer with the application for final 
plat approval; a cost estimate of any remaining landscaping improvements must be certified and submitted by the professional landscape architect with 
the application for final plat approval and the financial guarantee. 

3.16.06 Planning Commission Action. Presentation to the Planning Commission of Final Plat at a regularly scheduled meeting constitutes formal 
submission of said plat. At such meeting, the Planning Commission will review the plat and, after a public hearing, have the option to take the following 
actions: 

3.16.06.01 Approve the Final Plat as presented. 

3.16.06.02 Disapprove the Final Plat. If the Planning Commission determines that the Final Plat is in conflict with the approved Preliminary Plat or with 
the Subdivision Regulations, said plat may be disapproved. The reasons for such action shall be stated in the hearing, presented to the subdivider in 
writing and documented in the records of the Planning Commission. Reference shall be made to the specific section(s) of the regulations with which the 
Final Plat does not comply. The developer may resubmit the Final Plat application for Planning Commission review after the noted deficiencies have 
been corrected. 

3.16.06.03 Delay Action on the Final Plat.  The Planning Commission shall act to approve or disapprove a subdivision plat within thirty (30) calendar 
days after its formal submission at a regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the applicant waives this requirement and consents to an 
extension, the Planning Commission may defer action on the plat for a period not to exceed an additional thirty (30) calendar days. If no action is taken 
within the initial 30-day time period, or if there is no action taken within the extension period, such plat shall be deemed to have been approved, and 
notification to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission on request. 

3.16.07 Expression of Approval 

3.16.07.01 Approval and recordation of the final plat does not constitute the acceptance of any street or other public space shown on the plat. After 
approval of the Final Plat and the construction of streets, the Commission may recommend to the City Council that it accept the streets and take over 
their perpetual maintenance. Specific City Council resolution accepting streets and/or or other public spaces is required as noted herein. 

WAIVERS / MODIFICATIONS REQUESTED 

The development is required to provide sidewalks in accordance with several provisions of the Sub Regs. According to  Sec. 6.01, 
the developer is responsible for all required improvements either through installation or a financial guarantee of performance:  

The subdivider/developer shall be responsible for the provision of all required improvements to the subdivision/development. This 
may be accomplished by either the full installation of all required improvements by the developer at the time the Final Plat is to be 
submitted to the Planning Commission, or by the provision of a financial guarantee of performance. 



The applicant has requested “to contribute to City sidewalk fund instead of constructing sidewalks.” The Planning Commission has the 
authority to modify the sidewalk requirements using the guidelines in Sec 4.17.08, however that section is related more to the locational 
requirements and not applicable in relation to the applicant’s request.  The Subdivision Regulations do not include provisions that 
specifically allow or prohibit payment in lieu of construction.  

The City Administrator stated that if there is a decision by Planning 
Commission to accept payment in place of sidewalk construction, 
the payment would be deposited into the capital fund and held on 
deposit for Sidewalk Construction/Improvements. The developer 
would be required to submit payment in an amount equal to the 
cost of installing the sidewalks and fees encountered during 
execution of improvements. As no construction plans or 
specifications were submitted with the application, any design costs 
associated with the sidewalk construction would also be included. 
The Landscape Plan also notes that the “City must relocate the ditch 
along Quinley Street to construct sidewalk.” This request will not 
be permitted as the City cannot expend public funds in aid of private 
individuals or corporations. All costs associated with the construction of the required sidewalks, including the relocation or enclosure 
of the existing ditch, must be borne by the developer whether the developer constructs the sidewalks or the Commission allows a 
payment in lieu of construction.  

SECTION 4.17 SIDEWALKS 

4.17.02 Whenever land to be subdivided embraces or abuts an existing public street without sidewalks, such facilities must be provided by the 
Subdivider along the applicable portion of the existing street. 

4.17.03 Sidewalks, when required or provided, must be at least five (5) feet wide. In subdivision involving nonresidential and mixed-uses (other 
than industrial), sidewalks must be at least eight (8) feet wide. All sidewalks shall be constructed of reinforced concrete that has a minimum 
twenty-eight (28)-day compressive strength of 3,000 psi. 

4.17.04 All major subdivisions shall provide for sidewalks adjacent to all new lots. 

4.17.06 Sidewalks shall connect to any adjacent sidewalks and/or bike paths and shall be interconnected within said development to allow for 
sufficient pedestrian access. Sidewalks that are located adjacent to common areas or otherwise not adjacent to individual lots shall be constructed 
by the developer prior to final plat approval. 

4.17.07 Sidewalks must be in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), including provision of pedestrian 
ramps at street intersections. 

4.17.08.05 A permanently dedicated greenway, walking trail, pedestrian passage or similar pedestrian facility may be required as an alternative 
to or in addition to sidewalks to provide pedestrian access to nearby commercial centers, schools, parks or places of assembly. In such cases, 
the pedestrian facility should be located so as to be accessible to the greatest number of users within the proposed development.  

SECTION 5.02 PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE FACILITIES 

5.02.01 All major subdivisions shall provide for sidewalks adjacent to all new lots. 

5.02.04 Sidewalks shall connect to any sidewalks and/or bike paths within a reasonable distance and shall be interconnected within said 
development to allow for sufficient pedestrian access. 

5.02.05 Sidewalks shall be constructed by the developer prior to final plat approval. 

STAFF ANALYSIS / RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal meets the minimum Lot Area, Width and Density standards for the R-3 zoning district as well as the Landscape Provisions of 
the Zoning Ordinance. It does not meet the access standards as required by Sec 7.9.1 (listed below). As submitted, the proposed 
subdivision does not meet the provisions of the Subdivision Regulations listed below, either due to noncompliance or insufficient 
information submitted to allow a complete review. Letters of availability were submitted but no plans, specifications or narratives were 
submitted for drainage/stormwater management, sewer facility improvements, water facility improvements or sidewalk construction as 
required. The proposal’s primary deficiency is related to transportation/access to Lots 1-4. Those lots have access proposed from W 
Railroad Street, which is located partially on CSX right-of-way and partially on private property. Although there are residential and 
commercial uses existing, W Railroad Street is not a City-owned or maintained street and is not considered to be a public roadway. The 
City’s right-of-way ends at the northeastern corner of the subject property and only extends 30 feet south of the railroad right-of-way. City 
staff has been working with CSX to determine if any maintenance agreement can be reached, but no determination has been received. Our 



Engineering Consultant had comments 
related to the access, but based on legal 
counsel, “the CSX property does not belong 
to the developer and/or the City and it is not 
the City’s responsibility to purchase or obtain 
the ROW for a private developer. That issue 
alone precludes standard road widths and the 
ability for the developer or the City to ever 
maintain the property.” Counsel also 
determined that a prescriptive right-of-way is 
not an option in the railroad right-of-way. The 
developer had proposed to dedicate 30 feet 
of right-of-way along the northern property 
line, however, the Zoning Ordinance and Sub 
Regs require a minimum 60-ft right-of-way. If 
the 60-ft right-of-way is dedicated, a new 
roadway constructed to City standards would 
be required at the developer’s expense in 
order to be compliant with the Zoning 
Ordinance Subdivision Regulations.   
Based on the information submitted by the 
applicant, City Staff, Legal input and the 
analysis above, staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission 
DENY Case SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Final 
Plat as submitted.  



 
DEFICIENCIES AS NOTED BY STAFF 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE 

7.9 Access to Public Streets. Access to public streets shall be maintained in accordance with the following requirements: 

7.9.1 Each principal use shall be placed on a lot or parcel which provides frontage on a public or private street having a right-of-way of not less than 
sixty (60) feet, except where existing public rights-of-way are less than 60 feet. 

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

4.03.03 Each lot must front on an existing or proposed street having a right-of-way at least 50 feet wide. 

4.04.09 Proposed new streets must extend existing streets or their projections at the same or greater width, but in no case less than the minimum 
required width, unless variations are deemed necessary by the Commission for reasons of topography or other design constraints. 

4.06.01 The street layout must provide for access to the existing street network and continuation and connection of streets between adjacent properties 
where necessary for the convenient movement and circulation of traffic, effective police and fire protection, access by public service vehicles, and 
efficient provision of utilities; and in accordance with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
SECTION 4.13 FRONTAGE ON IMPROVED STREETS 
4.13.01 No subdivision shall be approved unless the area to be subdivided shall have frontage on, and access from an existing hard surface State, 
County, or City Road or highway; or 
 
4.13.02 A hard surface street upon a plat approved by the Planning Commission and recorded in the Baldwin County Probate Judge's Office. Such 
street or highway must be suitably improved as required by rules, regulations, specifications, or orders, or be secured by an improvement guarantee 
required under these subdivision regulations, with the width and right-of- way required by these subdivision regulations. 
SECTION 4.16 STREET DESIGN STANDARDS 
4.16.01 Proposed streets must be designed in accordance with the standards in Table 4-4, all applicable City Specifications and review of the City 
Engineer. 
 
4.16.03.01 Street Grades 

1. Streets must be graded and improved 
in accordance with City Specifications and 
must be approved as to design and 
specifications by the City Engineer and the 
Commission in accordance with the 
construction plans required to be 
submitted prior to Preliminary Plat 
Approval. 

 
SECTION 4.18 ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
The purposes of this section are to promote the 
overall safety of motorists, bicyclists, and 
pedestrians; to reduce interference with 
through traffic by other vehicles entering, 
leaving, and crossing streets; to assure safe 
access to and from streets by emergency 
vehicles; and to preserve the traffic capacity of 
streets. See illustrations following. 

 
4.18.01 General Conditions and Requirements. 
The location and design of vehicular accesses 
from existing or proposed streets must be 
specified in an Access Plan submitted as part 
of the Preliminary Plat. No curbs or rights-of-way may be cut, paved, or otherwise altered until a permit for the access has been secured from the City 
and/or any other governmental agency owning or controlling the street right-of-way. 
 
SECTION 4.20 DRAINAGE AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 



4.20.01 General Design Criteria. All drainage structures and facilities shall be designed and sized to meet the runoff of the drainage area to be served 
and in accordance with the City’s Drainage and Stormwater Management Standards. 
 
4.20.02 A drainage plan must be prepared by the Subdivision Engineer, which takes into consideration the ultimate or saturated development of the 
tributary area in which the proposed subdivision is located. Adequate provisions must be made to provide drainage easements needed within the 
subdivision, taking into consideration the saturated development of the tributary area. Post-development release rates may not exceed pre-development 
rates for a 2, 5, 10-, 25-, 50- and 100-year event. In no case may discharge from a drainage basin exceed the hydraulic capabilities of the initial 
receiving downstream drainage structures. The Commission may withhold approval of the subdivision until provision has been made for the necessary 
downstream improvement. 
 
4.20.03 Storm and sanitary sewer plans must be developed prior to other utility plans. Engineering considerations must give preferential treatment to 
gravity flow improvements over other utilities and improvements. Off-premise drainage easements and improvements may be required to handle the 
runoff of subdivisions into a natural drainage channel. Under no condition may any storm drainage be emptied into or become a part of any sanitary 
sewer system and vice versa. 
 
4.20.04 No subdivision or part thereof may shed storm runoff, either as surface runoff or an outfall from storm sewer structures, onto any adjacent land 
unless the runoff is contained within an existing drainage easement, swale, structure or right-of-way and provided further, that the existing drainage 
easement, ditch, structure or right-of-way provides outfall to an established drainage channel, as approved by the City Planner. 
 
SECTION 5.03 SANITARY SEWERAGE FACILITIES 
5.03.01 Sanitary sewers must be provided where a public sanitary sewer system is reasonably accessible as determined by the Commission and the 
public Sewer Authority responsible for the maintenance of the sanitary sewer system. The developer shall install a sanitary sewer system which meets 
the requirements of the Sewer Authority and shall connect to such system at their expense. 
 
5.03.03 When sanitary sewer facilities are required, the Subdivider must install the sanitary sewer facilities in a manner prescribed by the City Engineer 
and/or the Sewer Authority. All plans and specifications must be prepared by a registered engineer and submitted for approval at the time of submission 
of the preliminary plat. 
 
SECTION 5.04 WATER FACILITIES 
5.04.03 The location of all fire hydrants and all water supply improvements must be shown on the preliminary plat, and the cost of installation must be 
included in the performance bond, if applicable. 
 
SECTION 5.06 STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
5.06.01 All subdivisions shall be provided with adequate storm drainage facilities. Any areas subject to periodic flooding caused by poor drainage 
facilities will not be approved for a development by the Planning Commission unless the developer or subdivider makes necessary provisions to 
eliminate such flooding. 
 
5.06.02 In addition to the requirements herein, the Drainage and Stormwater Management Standards of the City of Bay Minette Zoning Ordinance shall 
also apply to all subdivisions. 
 
5.06.03 A complete drainage plan and contour map showing the criteria outlined in Appendix A Submittal Requirements, shall be submitted along with 
the profile grades and typical roadway section for approval. 
 
5.06.05 All off project drainage, draining onto a subdivision or other development, shall be shown on contour maps and/or construction plans showing 
the areas in acres that the subdivision or development will have to accommodate. 
 
5.06.07 Where the subdivider or developer has open ditches, a maximum of 3:1 front slopes and flat bottom ditch is required; the width of the ditch 
shall be determined by the required flows and the existing conditions and be approved by the City Engineer and Superintendent of Streets and 
Sanitation. V-bottom ditches or other special designs will be permitted in special cases. Resulting 2-year peak flow rates in the natural system or open 
ditch drainage shall be less than the critical rates that would cause excessive channel scour. 
 
5.06.10 Every drainage structure must be large enough to accommodate potential runoff from its entire upstream drainage area, whether inside or 
outside the planned subdivision. The Subdivision Engineer must determine the size of the facility based on City Specifications assuming conditions of 
the maximum potential development permitted by the Zoning Ordinance or as provided for in the Comprehensive Plan. Drainage structures must be 
designed in to a standard acceptable to the City Engineer. 
 
5.06.11 Storm drainage facilities must be installed where driveways connect with streets, must be specified in the Preliminary Plat. Size, location and 
width must be approved by the City Engineer. 

 



STANDARDS OF APPROVAL / PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 

SECTION 3.05 STANDARDS OF APPROVAL 
The Planning Commission shall not approve the subdivision of land if the Commission makes a finding that such land is not suitable 
for platting and development as proposed, due to any of the following: 
 
3.05.01 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with these Regulations; 
 
3.05.02 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance and/or any other plan or 
program for the physical development of the City including but not limited to a Master Street Plan, a Transportation Plan, a Parks 
Plan, a Bicycle Plan, a Pedestrian Plan, or a Capital Improvements Program, where applicable; 
 
3.05.03 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with other applicable Federal, State or County laws and regulations; or 
 
3.05.04 Notwithstanding that the proposed subdivision may satisfy the technical, objective provisions of these Regulations, the 
Commission has discretion to deny a subdivision if there is any articulable, rational basis for a determination that the proposed 
subdivision otherwise endangers the health, safety, or welfare of persons or property. 

 
The applicant has requested concurrent review of the Preliminary and Final Plat applications, however the Final Plat review and approval is 
contingent upon the approval of the Preliminary Plat. If the Preliminary Plat application is not approved, the Final Plat application cannot 
be approved. For Final Plat applications, the Planning Commission makes the final decision based on the Standards of Approval and has 
the option to: 

 
• Approve the Final Plat as presented 
• Deny the Final Plat, reasons for denial and referencing the specific section(s) with which the plat does not comply  
• Delay action on the Final Plat due to a lack of information 

 
 
 
3.16.06.03 Delay Action on the Final Plat. 
The Planning Commission shall act to approve or disapprove a subdivision plat within thirty (30) calendar days after its formal submission at a regularly 
scheduled Planning Commission meeting. If the applicant waives this requirement and consents to an extension, the Planning Commission may defer 
action on the plat for a period not to exceed an additional thirty (30) calendar days. If no action is taken within the initial 30-day time period, or if there 
is no action taken within the extension period, such plat shall be deemed to have been approved, and notification to that effect shall be issued by the 
Planning Commission on request. 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 

SD-24004 – Final Plat 
Large Format Plans Submitted 

Under Separate Cover 
 
 

See Exhibit C 
 
 
 


	March 14, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Feb Minutes 2.8.2024
	Minutes February 8, 2024 Monthly Meeting No. 2
	___________________________________

	Abundant Life
	TABLED SD-24003 Abundant Life Staff Report FINAL
	SD-24003 Application
	Email

	Large Format Plans Under Separate Cover - Exhibit Page
	Abundant Life
	TABLED SP-24001 Abundant Life Staff Report 3-13-24
	SP-24001 Application
	Abundant Life_GMC_Review Letter
	Total Conversation

	Large Format Plans Under Separate Cover - Exhibit Page
	Plasmine
	SP-24002, Plasmine Staff Report - CD
	Application Submittals
	Drainage Calculations and Narrative
	Drainage Calculations and Narrative
	COMMENTS REQUESTED_ SP-24002, Plasmine Project
	RE_ COMMENTS REQUESTED_ SP-24002, Plasmine Project
	Email 3-6-2024
	Email 3-6-2024
	GMC Email 3-11-24
	Plasmine_GMC_Review Letter

	Large Format Plans Under Separate Cover - Exhibit Page
	TPQ
	SD-24004 Staff Report Prelim Plat
	SD-24004 Application Materials
	Email Comments Requested - SD-24004, Quinley Oaks Subdivision
	E911
	Fire
	NBU
	NBU Utility Letter
	TPQ, LLC-Quinley lots-letters fr. utilities 
	Updates Comments Requested

	Large Format Plans Under Separate Cover - Exhibit Page
	TPQ
	SD-24004 Staff Report FINAL Plat

	Large Format Plans Under Separate Cover - Exhibit Page



